












































































Present:

Building Committee Meeting
Thursday, March 21, 2019 8:31

Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter, Building Inspector Hocevar, Mayor
Koons, Administrative Secretary Leslie Galicki

Schloss addressed old business, which was the long-term plan for the Building Department. He
stated that he had been spending a lot of time at the Building Department observing, and that
Kris Wilson was working hard, but there was not a flow of traffic and the contractors were not

coming in; there was not that much going on. Wilson, however, was doing her best to take care
of business. He added that Dave Hocevar is doing a great job with part-time inspections and
addressing zoning issues. Schloss proposed that the Building Department remain part-time until
the end of the year with Hocevar performing zoning and Building Official duties. Porter added
that this would depend on whether Hocevar was willing to extend his contract. Schloss replied
that Hocevar stated he was willing to do this.

Porter addressed Building Department revenue including construction deposits, which he stated
would be returned. He said if the Building Department did this year what it did last year, it
would clear $40, 000 - $50, 000, which would offset the cost of the Building Department
Secretary and the building or zoning official they would want to have. IfHocevar continued to
work as an independent contractor, this was the least expensive way to go. He questioned what
would occur after the end of the year and in the long term. Porter suggested the options would
be to hire a part-time Building or Zoning Inspector to begin work January 1 st. He also suggested
that Hocevar might want to continue.

Porter questioned whether Hocevar would be willing to sacrifice his private business dealings to
do this, considering the potential financial impact. He added that this would be a good
arrangement for the Village. Regarding a part-time zoning position, Porter stated that the current
salary would be between $40, 000 and $50, 000, which would not be much of a savings compared
to the salary of the former Village Building Inspector at $75, 000. Porter suggested the
possibility of promoting the current Building Department Secretary to the Zoning Inspector
position as Heilman did, and then replace the secretary position. He wondered if Wilson was
interested in becoming a Zoning Inspector.

Schloss asked if there was enough work for a full-time zoning position. Porter stated there was
not enough work for a full-time Zoning Inspector. There would be enough work for a full time
Building Inspector who could do zoning and building inspections. Porter added that it comes
down to control by the Village over construction and renovations over the long term. Schloss
suggested meeting with Hocevar in the next couple of weeks. Porter added that Hocevar has a
$2, 000 monthly retainer and bills above this depending on the workload. Porter thought the
Village would be spending $50, 000 no matter the course of action.



Regarding finding qualified individuals to fill the part-time Building Inspector position, Porter
stated they were few and far between. He added that Geauga County had four electrical, safety
qualified individuals, but one was retiring. To really save money, the Village could close the
Building Department and turn everything over to the County, but then services would be more
limited to include no roof inspections, and the Health Department would inspect septic systems.
It is more of a convenience issue. Schloss added that the Village would still need a Zoning
Inspector. Porter added it needed at least part-time zoning. Porter suggested that it should be
determined what a part-time Zoning Inspector's salary is.

Schloss advised that an individual submitted a resume, and that he would call the applicant.

Porter stated that most anyone could do zoning, but not building inspections because that
requires qualifications and certifications. He added that the salary of a part-time Building
Inspector should also be determined, but it would not include benefits.

At 8:42 am Dave Hocevar joined the meeting. He reported he had been at a meeting regarding
the Citizen's Bank project and a dispute between the Architectural Board of Review (ABR) and
Planning Commission (PC). He advised that Gary Neola took exception with a decision made by
Jim Flaiz from PC. It was determined by the Solicitor that ABR and PC have overlapping
authority.

Porter told Hocevar that he and Schloss were discussing his contract. Hocevar stated he just
wanted Council to continue in a positive direction with regard to resolution of the Building
Department. He said he could not see closing the Building Department but didn't know if it
needed to be completely full-time. Regarding zoning, Hocevar said that there are no
requirements for zoning but that the average person might take a long time to learn it because it
is complicated. He added that Wilson does not know zoning yet, and it took Heilman years to
learn it as it did him. Porter reiterated that there was no certification required and a Zoning
Inspector could learn the job while doing it. Hocevar commented that it would be a piece of
cake to do zoning in Chesterland, Russell, and Bainbridge, but not SRV. He felt it would be
good to have someone tied in with building who could oversee what was being built by ABR and
PC'S requirements and still comply with the zoning. He stated that is why the Village has the
community it has, and he felt it was not appreciated.

Hocevar addressed a house on E. Washington Street that is near Panini's and is obscured by
overgrown plantings. A certified letter had been sent to the owner. Hocevar addressed a house
on Femwood with a car on blocks, which would be sent a letter. Schloss asked about resolution

of the trailers parked at the residence on Maple Ridge and Bell Rd. Hocevar relayed that the
Mayor tried to get in contact with the owner, but he was out of town. Hocevar thought he should
also be sent a letter but was told the Village does not want to offend him because he is a Boy
Scout Leader and a nice guy. Hocevar told Schloss and Porter that they needed to explain to the
Mayor the necessity to issue the letters. Porter stated the trailers conform to the code. Hocevar



and Schloss told Porter that they do not. Hocevar explained that the residents were not in
compliance as previously stated by Heilman when she was Building Inspector because the
zoning rules were not properly interpreted. He added that the front yard setback rules for corner
lots is different. His point was that zoning can be confusing and cannot just be easily picked up
and learned.

Porter asked Hocevar if part-time was feasible, and Hocevar thought it was. Hocevar stated that
if the Village was looking for someone part-time, and wanted to save money, they should get
somebody who has a certification for residential building. He said it may not be the easiest thing
to do but it was doable. This would allow the Village to keep the control it had in the past. He
added that he recently had a number of issues with reputable contractors who were not installing
furnaces and hot water tanks according to manufacturer installation instructions.

Porter asked ifHocevar was willing to stay on after his contract expired in December, and
Hocevar advised that he was willing to do whatever was necessary with or without a contract.
He further explained that he is currently only charging his hourly rate and not individual
inspection fees. Schloss asked if this was fair to him. Hocevar said he enjoyed his work with the
Village. Additionally, Hocevar had recently observed contractors taking serious short-cuts, and
had identified the projects through construction dumpsters outside the homes. He doubted the
contractors would have corrected the work if he had not been a presence.

Porter suggested that the current Building Secretary could possibly become the part-time Zoning
Inspector candidate. Hocevar stated that he wanted to make sure people on Council were on the
same page. He added that there were some people on Council who want to eliminate the
Building Department because they feel it is a waste of money. He did not think this was true.
Porter said he did not see it this way, and Hocevar acknowledged he wasn't talking about Porter.
Schloss advised he likewise did not want to eliminate the Building Department.

Porter stated he found out that there was no permit pulled for his roof and there was no
inspection as a result. Hocevar said this is really the responsibility of the homeowner and the
contractor. Porter noted that on the contract it reflected that the contractor was responsible for
obtaining the permit, but Porter noted that he was not charged for one. He added that likewise
there was no permit for Galicki's roof and no inspection. Nairn's roof had a permit and
inspection. If it is necessary to identify these contracts by having someone drive by, then
someone needs to be driving by. Heilman used to do this. If the Village must rely on the
County, there would be no roof inspections. Hocevar added that the county does not have time
to do foundation inspections. Porter said that the County covers the entire county where there is
one person with the Village.

Hocevar addressed foreign contractors and questioned their ability to read plans if they don't
speak English. He discussed a home in Paw Paw Lake with foundation issues and ended up



having a discussion with the owner and builder. He let them know the Village would charge the
owner for extra inspections, which is allowed.

Schloss verified that Hocevar was willing to continue until told otherwise, and Porter stated he
would recommend to Council to continue Hocevar's contract at the current rate. Hocevar added
he was there to work together.

Porter asked about the status of the rental house and questioned whether the Village should sell it
though it brought in revenue. Hocevar said the rental was fine when he was the Building
Inspector but did not know if the Village was set to have rental property. It was not getting
market value rent. Porter agreed, but said it was good to keep the property in case the cemetery
needed to be expanded. The anticipated plot sales did not occur, and Porter did not think the
Village would be getting its money back on the project. Hocevar speculated that if it had been
put on the ballot it would have been voted down. Porter asked if more money was needed for
the rental property and added that Hunting Valley has rental properties.

The Mayor joined the meeting at 9:15 a.m. He stated he had just interviewed John Hershey who
wanted to be the Building Inspector for the Village. Hocevar advised that the Mayor needed to
be sure the individual had appropriate certifications, because when the Mayor posted the job
opening online, he omitted necessary qualifications and was getting responses from unqualified
individuals. The Mayor stated that Hershey had the qualifications. Schloss relayed that Hocevar
was willing to stay in his position. Porter asked the Mayor to send Hershey's resume to him, and
the Mayor said Hershey is into management and had a packet of information.

Hocevar asked the Mayor about the house near Panini's.

The Mayor stated that the owner of the trailers on the Leopold property (615 Bell Rd. ) told him
to "pound salt". He said there were others in violation in South Russell and he would not

address his issue until others addressed theirs. The Mayor named other persons with whom the
Village has attempted to contact regarding violations. Mrs. Brown, he said, ignores his attempts
to contact her. Chuck Mason responded and asked the Mayor about getting two trees cut down
because he could not afford to do so. The Mayor proposed that First Energy could take the trees
down. Another resident, Donna Bauman, is living in deplorable conditions and cannot afford the
taxes. She is appealing to Geauga County to get her property reappraised. The Mayor offered to
call Chuck Walder if she required additional assistance. The Mayor mentioned another
individual, Bucky, who had been assisted by Chief Rizzo in the past. He said that there were
services with the County that could possibly help some of the individuals the Village is dealing
with. Hocevar asked the Mayor to identify to whom he should send certified letters and said he

needed direction. The Mayor told Hocevar not to do anything with sending letters until the end
of April. Porter disagreed and said letters needed to be sent now. The Mayor asked that Hocevar
give Chuck Mason 30 days. The Mayor repeated that Mrs. Brown was ignoring correspondence
from the Village. He said the Leopold property was on Maple Ridge near the McSherry



property. Porter verified that a letter would be sent to them. Schloss verified a letter should be

sent to Brown. Hocevar offered that there were County services could help her as well. The
Mayor stated he had been putting letters in her mailbox. Porter again verified that a letter should
be sent to the Leopolds, but that Hocevar should hold off on sending one to "Bucky" - possibly
sending one in 30 days.

The Mayor also reported that Rolling Ridge did not have an ABR and that there was a complaint
about a new home in this neighborhood. Both Hocevar and the Mayor agreed the house was
fine. Hocevar verified that both Brown and Leopold would be issued letters and added that a
letter would be sent to "Wilbur".

Schloss adjourned the meeting at 9:30 a.m.

/

Ray Sc bss. Chairman

Prepared by Leslie Galicki



























Building Department Meeting
October 21, 2019 - 10:00 a.m. at Village Hall

Present: Chairman Schloss, Porter

Schloss asked Porter if he had looked at the lighting legislation provided by the Solicitor. Porter said
he thought the Village should have a lighting ordinance and added that the Solicitor had provided
several potential templates to use going forward. He thought the easiest solution is to limit the wattage
of the bulbs rather than using the light meter, but he did not know how practical this was. Schloss said
the simplest was from Independence. He asked Porter if they should have the Solicitor research this
one and address the wattage. Porter agreed. Schloss said the Committee could then present it at the
Council meeting. Porter added that somehow, the Village would need to make it retroactive. Schloss
agreed. Porter explained that if all residential and commercial buildings in the Village were required
to follow the ordinance, this would go a long way to address resident concerns about too bright lights,
in particular Daisy Lane and Dry Insurance. Porter said legally it would be difficult to do. He
explained that when the lights are turned off during the day and then turned on at night, this might
provide the means to say that now the individuals needed to comply with the Village's ordinance for
lighting.

Schloss stated that the current Building Department Secretary/Board Secretary would be interviewed
for the Zoning Inspector position. Schloss and Porter agreed to interview Grattino at 2:00 p.m. on
Wednesday, October 23, 2019. He added that the Fiscal Officer would be present for the interview.

Schloss indicated that there was a problem on the corner of Bell Rd. and Fernwood. He stated that the
Police Chief and Dave Hocevar were aware, and that the surrounding residents were furious about the
property. Porter asked if this was the property with abandoned cars, and Schloss explained it had been
cleaned up a couple of years ago but is now back into the same unacceptable state. The resident cut his
bushes so all the residents can see the property, specifically the portion of the property visible from
Fernwood, which is the backyard. Schloss would ask the Chief for recommendations but thought the
Village would need to send a letter addressing the matter. Porter recommended looking at the zoning
code for backyards.

Porter addressed the potential of Geauga County having a satellite office in South Russell if the Village
were to go with the county for the Building Official duties. He said it might be a good compromise for
people who wanted the service and people who would prefer the county to provide service. It would
basically be like having a Building Department, but the county would be running it. Porter explained
that the county is paid by the Village as taxpayers to run it, and if the County Commissioners were
agreeab!e'lt might be the way to go. Schloss agreed. He asked Porter if they should have a meeting at
6:30 before the Council meeting on October 28 to discuss how everyone feels about the closing of the
department and what will be done. Porter agreed.

Meeting adjourned at 10:07.

-:::r7'~? \^
Ray Schloss, air an

Prepared by: Leslie Galicki



BuUding Committee Meeting
Wednesday, October 23, 2019 2:00 p. m.

Present: Building Committee - Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter
Fiscal Officer Romanowski

At 2:00 p.m. Porter called the meeting to order. Schloss made a motion to go into Executive
Session to conduct a Zoning Inspector interview, seconded by Porter. Roll call: Ayes; Porter and
Schloss.

Committee reconvened at 2:16 p.m.

It was agreed to recommend Nancy Grattino to the Mayor to do a second interview for the part-
time Zoning Inspector position.

At 2:23 p.m., Schloss made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Porter. Voice vote; ayes, all.
Motion carried.

Ray Schloss, Chairman Building Committee

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski



Building Committee/Human Resource Joint Committee Meeting
Thursday, October 3, 2019 4:00 p.m.

Present: Building Committee - Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter
HR Committee - Councilman Galicki

Councilman Carrol! (arrived 4:30 pm)
Fiscal Officer Romanowski

At 4^00 p.m. Schloss called the meeting to order, attendance taken. Schloss made a motion to <
into Executive Session toconduct Zoning Inspector interviews, seconded by Porter" "RolTcaH:'
Ayes; Schloss, Porter & Galicki. ' ' ' -----. -.. .^.. ̂ ...

Carroll joined Executive Session at 4:30 p.m.

Joint Committee meeting reconvened at 4:47 p.m.

Porter made a motion to recommend Susan Hirsch to the Mayor for an interview for potentia
employment as the Village part-time Zoning Inspector, seconded by Galicki. Voice ̂oteTaves:

i carried. The committees are recommending the Mayor to interview Hirsch, 'Jacob"'
for part-time Zoning Inspector position. ~ ' -. --.,

Meeting adjourned at 4:49 p. m.

/

/^ ^,
Ray Schl ss, Chairman Building Committee Dennis Galicki, Chairman HR Committee

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski



Building Committee/Human Resource Joint Committee Meeting
Wednesday, September 25, 2019 4:00 p. m.

Present: Building Committee - Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter
HR Committee - Councilman Galicki (arrived 4:10 pm)

Councilman Carroll (arrived 5:25 pm)
Fiscal Officer Romanowski

^t4^0p'm. ' 
schloss called the meeting to order, attendance taken. Schloss made a motion to go

into Executive Session to conduct Zoning Inspector interviews, seconded by Porter. Roll call:
Ayes; Porter and Schloss

Galicki joined Executive Session at approximately 4:10 p.m.

Carroll joined Executive Session at 5:25 p. m.

Joint Committee meeting reconvened at 6:15 p. m.

It was agreed to recommend Jacob and Aspery to the Mayor to do second interviews for the oart-
time Zoning Inspector position.

At 6:18 p.m.. Porter made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Schloss. Voice vote; ayes, all.
Motion carried.

^ ..
/ /' ~<1

Ray Schloss, Chairman Building Committee Dennis Galicki, Chairman HR Committee

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski
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Building Committee Meeting
December 9, 2019 - 9:00 a.m.

Members Present: Chairman Schloss, Porter, Fiscal Officer, and Mayor

The Mayor stated that he asked for the meeting to talk about the hours of the Building
Department and distributed a handout to the committee. He listed the years since 2013, number
of permits, and the changes. He stated that the 2019 updated number is 280 permits. Porter
clarified that it was not 238, and the Mayor stated it was now up to 280 permits for the calendar
year. Porter asked if the revenue was the same. The Mayor stated the revenue was at $67, 746.
The Mayor said he was going to check this number because it seemed extremely high. Porter
stated that would seem like a record year. The Mayor agreed and said he would check with
Nancy Grattino, the Building Department Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk. Porter asked for
the break-down for the revenue, whether it was registrations, and the Mayor stated that it was
just building permits. Porter noted that there were no registrations for contractors included. The
Mayor stated this is what he wanted to make sure. He added that there were miscellaneous
permits at $24, 000, but he did not know what this was. Grattino just gave the report to him about
two minutes prior to the meeting.

The Mayor named the employees he listed, Hocevar, Heilman, and Maggie in 2013; Hocevar
was 40 hours, Heilman was 40 hours, and Maggie averaged about 4 hours a week, about 17
hours a month. 2014, Hocevar became Inspection Solutions, and the Village had Heilman and
Maggie doing the 49 hours a week. 2015 was the same situation. 2016, Maggie left, so there
was Hocevar for 5 hours a week, Heilman at 40 hours a week, and an administrative assistant for
a total of 65 hours. The same was for 2016, 2017, and 2018. He did not include Heilman in
2019 because she only worked a month. The Department has had Inspection Solutions for 5
hours, administrative assistant at 25 hours. The Fiscal Officer asked ifHocevar's contract was
for 5 hours a week, and the Mayor stated 20 hours a month, and extra when he works extra.
Porter added that it is on top of the $2,000 retainer, and the Mayor stated that the 5 hours a week
is what Hocevar gives the Village. Porter clarified that they are included in the $2, 000. The
Mayor stated he has to work 20 hours per week. Porter stated that anything over 20 is at
Hocevar's hourly rate. The Mayor stated Hocevar is generous with his time from what he can
see and tell.

The Mayor stated that the Building Department is asked to perform the work at 30 hours a week,
and it can't be done in his opinion. Porter stated that the Grattino is working 25 hours per week
for the Building Dqiartment, and he asked what extra she gets for being Board Secretary. The
Fiscal Officer stated it was a total of 25 hours for both. The Mayor stated she is the
Administrative Assistant, Board Secretary, and soon to be the Zoning Inspector. Schloss asked if
she was going to be the Zoning Inspector - the Mayor stated it was his recommendation, and
Schloss said he hoped so. Porter asked if the Mayor was going to appoint her at the December 9,
2019 Council meeting, and the Mayor replied that they would have to talk about it in Executive
Session. The Mayor stated that he thought Grattino should then become a Department Head, so
she runs the show. Schloss asked who was currently doing Zoning. The Mayor stated nobody,
but Hocevar is listed. Schloss said it appeared that nothing was happening in zoning. Schloss
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stated he had called the Building Department for six weeks regarding the home at Femwood and
Bell Rd., and clarified he was calling for the residents who are fit to be tied about the Village
allowing this to happen. For six weeks he has called the Building Department and Grattino told
him she was too busy and could not do anything about it. Schloss was very upset about this and
said it was wrong for the Village to not do anything about this. The Mayor stated the Village
could take "Chuck" to court. Schloss said that is what he wanted the department to do, and
Hocevar told Schloss he would do it, but nothing had happened. None of the letters were being
written. Schloss said someone could not go over to the residence and ask him to do it because
Chuck would blow them off like he has blown Schloss off and everybody else. The Village has
to take a stand and Zoning must send out letters and get it rolling. Schloss added that it takes
five minutes to put a letter together. He asked the Mayor to ask Grattmo to do this or ask
Hocevar. The Mayor stated that after today he will appoint her as Zoning Inspector. With
Chuck, Mitchell, Brown, and Wilbur, the Mayor knocked on their front doors and told the
resident to clean it up. He went to Chuck's and told him his bushes needed to be trimmed.
Instead of trimming them, he cut them down and all of the junk in his backyard is visible. Had
he just trimmed them, he would have had a nice fence, and no one would ever see the backyard.
Schloss stated that everyone knows that the guy is not mentally stable. The police had been there
numerous times in the last three weeks with the children in there. Schloss was concerned that

there would be a serious incident in the home unless the Village gets a grip on it. The Mayor
stated he was not aware of that. Porter asked what children, and Schloss stated Chuck's
stepchildren and recommended they speak to the Police Department.

The Mayor said he would discuss this in Executive Session, but when they come out, his idea
would be to appoint Grattino as the Zoning Inspector at 10 hours per week in addition to what
she is presently doing. Schloss asked if this meant she would physically go out and check
neighborhoods and do whatever she has to. The Mayor stated she did it for five years and is very
familiar with driving by and sending letters. Porter asked if the Mayor was talking about raising
Grattino from 25 hours a week to 35 hours a week; the Mayor replied, "yes. " Porter asked if this
included Board Secretary, Building Department Administrative Assistant, and Zoning Inspector.
The Mayor stated yes, right now she has three hats. Porter stated that right now she is not being
compensated at least officially for Board Secretary and asked if this was right. The Mayor stated
it was all just kind of muddled together. The Fiscal Officer clarified that it was one position
where two jobs were combined into one and she is paid hourly. Schloss said he did not have a
problem with that. Schloss said he was a lame duck, and the Mayor said Schloss' opinion still
mattered to him. Schloss said it was absolutely necessary to do that. The Mayor stated she is
being run ragged and Hocevar is being run ragged. The Mayor stated that looking at his
analysis, to try to do a job that was done with 84 hours is now attempting to be done in 30 hours
and it doesn't work. Schloss stated it was nice to see the revenues increasing, and he said it was
amazing. The Mayor stated he was going to check on the $67, 000. The Fiscal Officer and
Porter stated it was extremely high. Porter stated especially considering the permits were 280
and there were 324 permits two years ago and $54, 000 came in. His guess was the number
included contractor registrations and whatnot. The Mayor stated he thought something got
muddied there. Schloss asked if this had anything to do with the new house being built on Bell
Road. The Fiscal Officer stated when The Lantern went in the Village did not receive that kind
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of money. The Mayor added a house on Bell Road went in in 2018 and it wasn't that much. He
stated something may be wrong and he will check with Grattino and check with Heilman.

Porter said there was the house being built on the McSherry property, and Schloss indicated this
was what he was referring to. The Mayor stated it was $1.2 million house on a slab. Schloss
said it was going to be so beautiful when its done. Porter stated, "let's hope so. " The Mayor
stated he thought it was designed so that you're never going to see it and "he" had talked to the
Mayor about mounding in front of the house and what he can and cannot do, trying to hide it.
Schloss commented, "good for him. " The Mayor stated he thought the people next to him got
the surprise when they realized the woods weren't their woods.

The Mayor asked if there was anything else, and Schloss stated he was for it.

The Fiscal Officer asked if the committee read her report about combining administrative offices
in the Building Department space, or if they were not interested in doing that. Porter said he had
not read the report. Schloss said he read the report and thought it was awesome. The Fiscal
Officer reported that she had spent time in the Building Department to see what was going on for
multiple reasons. It was hard to manage somebody when she was not there. The Village took a
new person and put her in an office by herself all day and told her to go for it. The Fiscal Officer
had been working on the budget and initially did not have time to spend in that office, however
now she has been working over in the Building Department building. She said there are a lot of
processes, and she did not understand it fully, but she and Nancy thought there were a lot of
things that need to be cleaned up, organized, and streamlined. She thought there were problems
with only having one person there. For example, last week Grattino had the stomach flu and had
to come in because the Village had no one else to cover the office. She stated Grattino has also
requested to leave at noon on December 10 , and the Fiscal Officer stated then the department
would be closed. Fiscal Officer expressed concern about how many times the Village was going
to call Heilman, the former Building Department Inspector, and the former Administrative
Assistant and Board Clerk to come in and train people. The Fiscal Officer stated she has felt the
Village should cross train departments. She would like to think of it as more an administrative
team to work together to get things done. Fiscal Officer asked if Grattino were to ever leave,
who would there be to call to help. There is specialized software, counter service, and she
thought cross training and working together would be a good solution. Porter asked about the
Fiscal Officer's administrative assistant and the Fiscal Officer clarified that both of them would

move over there and make it an administrative office where everyone would be there to cover for
each other. IfGrattino had minutes to do, for example, someone else could do the paperwork for
the permits, etc. With more people learning the work, there would be more people to understand
the process and it would be possible to work together. Rather than separating the departments
and putting a wedge between them, she asked why they could not work together. She thought
this was the most efficient and best service for the Village. Porter clarified that no one would be
at Village Hall. The Fiscal Officer stated she probably gets one person a month that comes into
the office for her, she really works behind the scenes. Plus, people could be directed that the
office was moved across the parking lot. Schloss stated it is a beautiful office. The Fiscal
Officer said the problem is that there is a lot of files and paperwork both offices require and
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mentally she is trying to envision how to rearrange things to have everything that is needed for
everyone in one space. She added that she just thought it would be better. She likes the solitude
of Village Hall when she is working on her numbers as it is easier to focus and handle
confidential matters, but when she thinks of what is best for the Village, she believes this is what
makes the most sense. Porter stated this presumes that the Village will not have a part-time
Building Inspector for awhile or ever. The Fiscal Officer pointed out that the Village has a part-
time Building Inspector. Porter agreed but said Hocevar is an independent contractor. The
Fiscal Officer clarified that Porter was referring to bringing one on staff. Porter said yes and
referred to the previous effort to find a part-time Building Inspector and said it would be
necessary to look again because Hocevar would not be around forever. Porter said that Hocevar
had been doing Inspection Solution for 4 years going on 5 and might decide he wants to scale
back. He felt a back-up plan is needed and the solution Porter saw was finding a part-time
Building Inspector and possibly consider a full-time Building Inspector. Porter explained that if
there was a Building Inspector in the Building Department, it would be crowded. The Fiscal
Officer agreed, but said logically it makes the most sense, but was still considering the logistics.
Porter asked the Mayor for his opinion.

The Mayor stated he felt completely blindsided by the Fiscal Officer. This was an administrative
issue that she just sent out to Council, absolutely no consultation or discussion with him. He
thought it was something he will consider, and he will meet with the Fiscal Officer at the
appropriate time. He didn't think it is in the best interest of the residents. He didn't think having
everybody over there in a tight situation was the best situation. If the Fiscal Officer needed more
space, he said she could take the whole downstairs of Village Hall. He had an office; Jim Davis
had an office. He did not see it benefitting the residents at all. He said we have squeezed and
strangled the Building Department and we are now getting it to where it can go, and it is a viable
department. Things really haven't changed in six years except the number of hours. We keep
cutting the hours back and the performance has been shaky this year. Mayor said things are
coming. Woodmere went out and picked up a half-time Building Inspector; $43, 000. Chagrin
has some options. There are other situations that can be done. The Mayor further stated that at
the end of the year, the committee is changing. He thought the Fiscal Officer's proposal is ill
timed.

Schloss said when he received it the other day, he thought it was a pretty good idea because he
had been over to the Building Department office on many occasions, and there was no one there
for one reason or the other. It is difficult and he could see where the Fiscal Officer was coming
from. It had merit. Schloss knew that the Building Department would not close and that they
want to keep it open and it would not go to the county. There was no sense in him discussing it
anymore. There has to be more than one person over there.

The Mayor stated the Building Department should go back to what it was. There was a
secretary. Back in the day when Laura was the secretary and a part-time $5, 000 a year inspector
there were two people in the office. The Mayor stated that the Board Secretary job was the one
that could be taken offGrattino's shoulders; it is time consuming and can be done at home. That
is the way some of the previous people did the job. The Mayor thought long term there was
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enough work for a department head, an administrative assistant, whatever you want to call that
person. And then enough for a Board Secretary at 17 hours a month. And enough for at least a
part-time if not a full-time building inspector. Things haven't changed except for the hours.

Porter said the difficulty is finding a part-time Building Inspector that the Village wants. A full-
time Inspector Porter did not think it would happen, and yet it might be difficult to find a part-
timer who is qualified, and that the Village wants. If the Village is going to have a Building
Inspector, it may have to have a full timer. He hated to be forced into that position, but after
seeing the resumes last time around, they were horrifically unqualified people applying. Maybe
this time it would be different. Dave Hocevar knows all these guys.

The Mayor said the solution will probably be within a year with Harry, the Building Inspector in
Chagrin. Schloss asked if he was leaving. The Mayor said he is close, and he has talked to him,
and he thought that is where you'll have a situation. The Mayor was just at Hunting Valley and
their Building Inspector has no electrical license - that is a huge disservice. Schloss asked who
has done us a huge dissendce, and the Mayor said the State of Ohio. Until the 1980's there was
no qualifications necessary to be a Building Inspector. Licensing takes years and people in this
economy are not willing to give up construction jobs. The Mayor referred to an
architectur^uilding firm that wants part of "our job". There are people out there. Right now,
Hocevar is the best solution, but he thought they would have to get somebody, probably going to
have to steal somebody, or look at going together with another municipality like Woodmere to
get somebody, which is still a possibility. Schloss asked about Woodmere. The Mayor said he
gets paid $45 per hour/$43, 000 per year part-time. He tried to hire Hocevar to work for him.
Porter added declining resources, increase in demand is a good way to be. The Mayor stated in
Executive Session that night, they would talk about it and come out and take some action
hopefully

^ ^-
Ray Schl ss, Chairman

Prepared by: Leslie Galicki
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Building Committee Meeting on Monday, December 9, 2019, 9:00 a. m.

Agenda

Hours for Building Department

YEAR
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

PERMITS
239
276
293
314
324
311
23g"^o

REVENUE
$35, 498
$53, 698
$54, 522
$43, 542
$54, 793
$49, 565
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EMPLOYEES HOURS
Dave, Laura, Maggie 84
IS, Laura, Maggie

IS, Laura, Maggie
IS, Laura, AA

IS, Laura, AA

IS, Laura, AA
IS, AA
IS, AA, Zoning

49
49
65
65
65
30

?

?

7

^p^J±Z^ ^^^b^cfc^r-^ /.
^j^J& 4_^7V^

^^- ^^w^^w"
^ YV^-A^ -^^-

(Q^pcc^ ^T\ -^^^^
^ d^K'



Building/Zoning Committee Meeting

Wednesday, May 8, 2019 9:00 a.m.

PRESENT: Schloss, Porter, Hocevar, Romanowski

Schloss introduced new business and asked Hocevar for an update of the three to four problem
homes in the Village. He reported that there was no response from three of the residents and one
asked him to call them. Hocevar further relayed that more complaints have been coming in daily.
Regarding 304 Hazelwood, the certified letter was returned from the Post Office unaccepted.
Hocevar asked what the next step would be. Schloss stated that the resident was living in the
home. Hocevar verified the letter was also sent regular mail, and Porter advised that the resident
then had been notified and the matter would be referred to the prosecutor. Schloss agreed.
Hocevar stated that another home, possibly 153 Lakeview Lane, was sent a certified letter last
week. Porter stated if the letter had not been picked up then a regular letter should be sent.
Hocevar stated the yard is a mess with a treehouse, trash, toys, tractors, etc.

Hocevar addressed the hours he has been putting in with the Village currently and advised that
they were not enough to address all the issues. He worked until 5:00 p.m. the previous evening.
Hocevar stated he could not donate or give enough hours to address issues. He stated that the
residents deserve more, in particular they deserve a Building/Zoning Department. Hocevar
receives phone calls at night but does not charge the Village.

Hocevar stated the Clemans Nelson Audit was a joke and not accurate. Porter stated he knew
Hocevar was not billing every hour, and that in the report Hocevar and Wilson said the Building
Department should be full-time. Clemans Nelson recommended it be part-time, but Porter was
uncertain the Village could find a part-time inspector.

Hocevar stated that a problem he had seen with municipalities letting go of their building
departments and then finding that they could not get them back. He spent a day in Streetsboro
because they closed their Building Department and could not find anybody. Streetsboro is
booming and the contractors have to wait for five days and are complaining to the Department of
Commerce He felt it was not fair to the residents and contractors there because they are paying
big permit fees. There are people waiting to move in and can't get occupancy permits for two
weeks. He did not want to see South Russell eliminate the Building Department.

Schloss stated that this was not even a thought. Porter stated there had been this thought in the
past by various members of Council over the years. He thought the Clemans Nelson
recommendation of a part-time building official was fine and if the Village found there was more
of a demand it could transition to full-time. He did not think the Building Department should be
closed, and that an ad should be placed to find a part-time building official over the summer. He
added that Hocevar had committed for the rest of the year. He added that he was grateful and
noted that the work has not been going down.



Hocevar stated he is falling behind on the maintenance issues in the Village and had no time to
do them because he is committed to other places. He stated he would like to advertise the part-
time building official in the Building Officials Conference of North East Ohio (BOCONEO)
Newsletter. Hocevar stated he knows 90% of the people who would apply for the job. He asked
to be part of the interview process.

Regarding Hocevar staying on for the remainder of the year, Hocevar stated he did not want to
commit for the remainder of the year. He said he was overwhelmed by all his commitments. If
he saw that the process was heading in the right direction, he would continue. He suggested his
contract go month to month.

Schloss stated that in the meantime, Hocevar thought the Village should advertise for a part-time
building official with a Building Official Certification, Residential Plumbing, Electrical Safety
Inspector if possible, and have zoning experience.

Hocevar stated that he had a resume that he did not share from a person the Village may want to
consider. He had not seen the individual in years, but the person had sent Hocevar his resume in
January or February and he forgot about it. The Fiscal Officer advised that this individual
provided it to her as well and added that he has been inquiring monthly about the opening.

Hocevar stated that there were no guarantees about what the Geauga County Building
Department would be doing and speculated they might be downsizing. He added that they do
not do the quantity of inspections South Russell does because they are overwhelmed. Porter
pointed out that they are dealing with Chardon and other places, and what South Russell has are
rehabs and not so much new construction. Hocevar added that Geauga County is more lax about
permits.

Porter stated that for the May 13, 2019 Council meeting, the Building Committee should
recommend the Village advertise for a part-time Building Official with the qualifications
mentioned by Hocevar. The Committee would collect and review resumes. Input by Hocevar,
the Fiscal Officer, as well as the Mayor would be desired. Ultimately, interviews would be
conducted, and recommendations provided to Council.

The Fiscal Officer stated that the Human Resources Committee would be recommending going
to a part-time building and zoning department and get approval for an ad to be placed May 14th
for a Building/Zoning Inspector. Hocevar asked if he could work on the ad with the Fiscal
Officer, and she agreed. He wanted it to be advertised in the BOCONEO newsletter as well.
Fiscal Officer stated that was the intent of the Human Resource Committee as well.

The Fiscal Officer stated that Hocevar's contract, which expires at the end of May, would also be
on the agenda for the May 13th Council meeting. Porter suggested going month to month.
Hocevar said he would never stick it to the Village because the Village had been good to him.

Hocevar also stated that owners of the bowling alley lots had recently come into the Building
Department asking to divide their lots and sell them for a development. He added that it is a
conservation district and the zoning is complex. Porter added that no one ever thought the
property on which the Lantern was built would ever be built on because of water. He said that it



was too expensive to bring a water line from Bainbridge to the facility, but now the Village has
the Lantern which has its own wells. He saw the same thing being possible with the 30 acres on
the east edge of the Village.

Porter stated that money wise, he did not know whether it would be a wash with what a part-time
building official would be paid being offset by the pennit fees. Hocevar pointed out that the
Village could raise the fees, and that Chagrin Falls charges eight times as much for commercial
permits.

Schloss stated he spoke to the Solicitor about proposed legislation for trailers on properties, and
the suggestion by Council members was that it was too harsh. Porter stated that the change to
the ordinance basically banned trailers, and he thought it was a good idea. The difficulty he
perceived was with the existing trailers and the issue of telling these residents to move the
trailers once the ordinance was changed. He said an argument might be that they were
grandfathered, but it was an ordinance and not zoning, so the counterargument would be that it
was a new ordinance and the residents must comply. He thought if the ordinance was changed
and the Village then tried to enforce it, there might be some contentious litigation. He said if it
appeared the Village were targeting individuals with the ordinance, that this would not play well
in court. It had no criminal penalties, and he thought the ordinance could be changed and then
the residents advised that they could no longer park their trailers where they were visible from
the street.

Porter said he would address it at the next Council meeting and advised against waiving
readings. Giving it the three readings would allow as much public input as necessary. It could
also be put in an eblast and appear in the newsletter to enable residents to address concerns with
Council. The Fiscal Officer asked if the ordinance was already written and Porter explained that
the Solicitor had sent it to the Committee. She asked for a copy for Council Packets and asked if
Porter planned to introduce it. Porter said he did not think the Solicitor wrote out the formal
amendment but sent two versions; the existing ordinance and then the change to the ordinance.
He suspected there would be debate about the language and what the Village was trying to
accomplish. Porter stated the Village did not want to target residents. Schloss agreed and added
that the Village also did not want the problem to continue. Hocevar speculated that the Village
would find more people for the change than against it. Porter stated he would let the Solicitor
know the Committee needed the ordinance to consider at the May 13 Council meeting.

Porter stated that residents should not antagonize their neighbors, and addressed a previous
problem with a resident with an RV.

Hocevar asked whether they agreed about sending the letters out by regular mail, certified mail
and then movmg forward with the courts. Porter advised that this demonstrated that the Village
provided official notification when the case went to court. Hocevar stated that the Village was
not looking for small issues.

Hocevar addressed the issue of the Building Secretary, Kris Wilson, not wanting to continue with
having the Board Secretary responsibilities because they are overwhelming to her. She did not
want to have to attend the evening meetings and then do the minutes from the meetings. The



Fiscal Officer stated that the HR Committee planned to go with the Clemans Nelson
recommendation to combine the two positions as one part-time position. The idea was that the
Village would hire a part-time Building/Zoning Inspector and have the Building Secretary
position be responsible for the Boards and the Building Department secretary duties. Schloss
stated that ifWilson could not do this, the Village would have to advertise to fill the position.
Porter stated the problem in the past was that the boards don't consistently meet, and the
workload varied. He felt the position needed to be filled by a retired or "at home" person who
could commit to being available when the boards met at night and then doing the minutes after.
Schloss asked whether the Village could advertise for this. The Fiscal Officer clarified that the
thought process of the HR Committee was if Council combined the two positions into one, that
the new position would be first offered to Wilson. If she declined, then the Village would
advertise. Porter stated he did not like the idea, unless Council made the combined position full
time. He thought it was better to find someone part-time who would come when needed to fill
the Board Secretary position. Schloss stated that for every hour Wilson spent in a board meeting,
she would then spend two and a half hours writing up the minutes, and Schloss said Wilson said
she was not capable of doing this and was overwhelmed.

Hocevar stated that Wilson said she would leave if the position was combined. He said she did
not mind working part time and did not mind working in the Building Department and learning
some zoning but did not want to take on both jobs. Schloss added that Wilson is currently
looking for other employment and Porter asked if she were full-time, would this change the
picture. Hocevar said he did not know. Hocevar asked the Committee to look at this issue. He

added the two of them had some issues, but she has made progress. Hocevar added that she has
a college degree and speaks three languages. He did not think the Village wanted to lose her
because then the Village would have to retrain a new secretary. Porter stated that possibly
Schloss would want to recommend the part-time board secretary independent of Building
Department. Hocevar recommended Porter speak with Wilson.

Schloss stated Wilson would be on vacation for a week. Hocevar stated Wilson suggested
forwarding calls to Hocevar. The Fiscal Officer had offered to have the emails and voicemails
forwarded to her and she would notify Hocevar of any inspections. Hocevar preferred to have
the calls forwarded directly to him. Porter agreed.

Porter adjourned the meeting at 9:43 a.m.

Ray Schloss, ilding Committee Chairman

Prepared by: Leslie Galicki



Building Committee Meeting
Tuesday, June 18, 2019 9:00 a. m.

Present: Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter, Building Inspector Hocevar

Schloss stated that the committee was meeting to discuss the resumes which had been submitted
for the Building Commissioner position. He turned the meeting over to Hocevar because he was
familiar with many of the applicants.

Hocevar addressed the resume of Jack Clifford. Hocevar stated Clifford wanted three to four
months (the winter months) off. Hocevar added that Clifford had been around for a long time.
Porter stated he worked for Clifford Corporation in 1964 as a plumber and pipe fitter, and
Hocevar determined that he must be about seventy-five years old. Porter stated he had been a
Building Commissioner from 1998 to 2001 for the City of South Euclid and the City of
Painesville. Regarding qualifications, Clifford has Plumbing, Plans Examiner, Residential
Building Official, Residential Plumbing Inspector, Plumbing Contractor, and State of Ohio
Building Official certifications. Porter and Hocevar stated Clifford did not have a commercial or
electrical certification. Hocevar added that Clifford was somewhat familiar with zoning. He
reiterated that Clifford was looking for a part-time position where he could come and go as he
liked. Hocevar also called into question a three-month employment with SAFEbuilt and said he
would look into the matter. Porter thought Clifford was worthy of an interview and Schloss
agreed.

Hocevar telephoned John Dasher, another applicant, regarding his certifications because he listed
the interim certifications of Building Official, Commercial, and Residential. Porter noted that
Dasher was a Building Inspector in South Euclid. Hocevar stated that Dasher owned his own
business and was a general contractor. Porter asked what was meant by an interim Building
Official certification. Hocevar explained that he could oversee the department but was
essentially a trainee. Porter clarified that he would require supervision for inspections, and
Hocevar explained that Dasher would require supervision for Commercial and Residential, and
he had no electrical or plumbing certifications. Hocevar stated he would put him on the list, but
interview more qualified individuals first. Schloss agreed. Porter noted that Dasher had been a
Boiler Technician in the U. S. Navy from 1974 - 1978.

A third applicant, Daniel D'Agostino, according to Hocevarjust took a job with Streetsboro on
Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays, and wants to work two days a week, Tuesdays and
Thursdays. Porter asked if this was practical, and Hocevar stated it would be better to have half-
day people in the office. Hocevar added that D'Agostino was also still doing work with
Richmond Height and told Hocevar that between those three municipalities, he could come to the
Village. Porter and Schloss questioned how effective this would be but added that he lives in
Russell Porter stated D'Agostino has interim certifications ofESI, ICC, Residential, Building
Official, Building Inspector, but not Commercial or Plumbing. Hocevar explained that with
interim certifications, there must be someone with the individual at the inspections. Porter asked
how long it would take to get full certification. Hocevar stated the times vary and could be
between three and four years. Porter noted that DAgostino was at the point of getting full



certification and Hocevar agreed. Although Porter did not like the idea of his limited
availability, given the certifications he felt D'Agostino was worthy of an interview.

Hocevar added that for his part-time work with Streetsboro, D'Agostino makes $60, 000.

Kris Wilson, Building Department Secretary, reported that she had received a return phone call
from James Pinkney who relayed that all his certifications had lapsed, but that he could reinstate
them. Schloss commented that he was last on his list. Hocevar stated he had no certifications
and was a housing inspector with the Metropolitan Housing Association. Porter did not find this
helpful. Hocevar advised that he knew who Pinkney was and the committee should put him off.

Hocevar spoke to another applicant, Robert Baker, who lives in Vermillion. Porter stated Baker
has Residential Building, Residential Mechanical, and Residential Plumbing certifications, but
no electrical and no commercial. Porter stated that Baker's qualifications included Building
Official and Building Inspector. Hocevar stated he called Baker the previous day and left a
message about Baker's certification being up to date. He said Baker did not return his call. He
added that looking at Baker's resume it would not appear he has worked for anyone, in particular
not a municipality. Porter questioned why he would then have the certifications. Hocevar
speculated that is why Baker did not return his call. Porter indicated Baker had done lead
renovation. Porter would offer Baker an interview.

Porter stated that James Border was the next applicant and stated he was the Building Inspector
for the Village ofMcDonald. Hocevar advised that he called the applicant yesterday asking him
if he was willing to drive that distance. Porter stated he had no certifications. Schloss advised he
was the Zoning Inspector for McDonald, which appeared to be his primary qualification. Porter
asked if he was qualified for the position with just the zoning qualification, and Hocevar stated
he did not think so. Porter noted that Border had an interim Commercial certification, and again
asked for clarification. Hocevar explained that Border let his qualifications lapse and required
supervision as a result. Schloss suggested putting the applicant at the bottom of the list. Porter
recommended not interviewing Border.

Regarding another applicant, Donald Woodruff, Hocevar stated he had zero certifications. He
speculated that this was an applicant that came from when the Mayor placed the ad.

Schloss stated that Bill Pier from North Olmsted was an applicant and Hocevar stated that Pier
did not return his call regarding certifications. Schloss advised that he did not have certifications
and was a construction person. Porter indicated that Pier worked for Panzica and Marous. Porter
recommended not interviewing Pier.

George Baton was another applicant whom Schloss said was not qualified. Porter asked what he
did for Willoughby Hills, and Hocevar explained that they used to have a Housing Department
that did Residential Zoning and maintenance. Porter indicated that the resume stated he was an
office professional and asked if this meant secretary. He added, however, that Baton had a BA in
Architecture, but could only type 45 words a minute. Porter suggested not interviewing Easton.



Hocevar asked about the applicant, Saed Oqal. Porter stated Saed is a marine engineer and the
Chief Engineer on a tanker. He thought his qualifications did not match the needs of the Village.
Hocevar added that he could not understand a word Saed said. Schloss added that he attended
the Arab Academy for Science and Technology. Porter stated he had zero qualifications and
recommended not interviewing him.

Schloss stated the committee had narrowed the applicants to four; D'Agostino, Clifford, Dasher,
and Baker. Porter added the others were either not qualified or lacked certifications. Porter said
letters of declination should be sent to the others. Hocevar suggested waiting until after his
Building Officials Conference of Northeast Ohio (BOCONEO) meeting on June 19 where he
might gain insight into the applicants. Schloss and Porter agreed and added that perhaps
Hocevar would find a better qualified applicant at the meeting.

Porter added that although the applicants had some qualifications, there was not one that had
every certification.

Hocevar suggested that perhaps the committee would want to look for a Building Inspector or
hold on to what the Village currently had while bringing Kris Wilson up to speed on zoning. He
explained that much of his time has been spent doing zoning such as looking at overgrown grass,
junk cars and in resident's driveways, which would be something Wilson could do. He thought
perhaps the committee would want to reconsider the situation. He said the zoning was a pain and
took a lot of time and was an expense to the Village. He discussed this idea with'Wilson^ and
further explained that if someone else did the Board Clerk job and Wilson were to do fluctuating
rounds, the Village might have a good candidate for Zoning. Porter stated it was worth
considering. Hocevar urged Porter to speak to Wilson first, but had already mentioned it to her
the previous day, and she was receptive. He added that she was catching on and understood the
zoning and had offered to look at the grass issues in the Village. Hocevar advised that right now,
Wilson had no authority to even sign a zoning permit. He questioned why he should come
running into the Village to sign a zoning permit. Porter stated the Village would need to change
the zoning code Hocevar suggested that instead Wilson would be considered the Zoning
Official. He added that Wilson had issues she wanted to discuss with the Building Committee
pertaining to her lunch time and moving it. She suggested closing an hour earlier'and forgetting
the lunch break. Porter said this runs into Federal laws about how long people can work before
being given a break. Hocevar stated he enjoyed the building aspect of the job, but not the
zoning. He thought Wilson could pick up the loose ends, with checking fences, and ABR issues,
and he did not see the need for him to do it. Porter said when he checked with Wilson about this
previously, Wilson did not seem interested. Hocevar said that all of a sudden something changed
the previous day when she expressed interest.

Hocevar explained that none of the applicants looked very promising, and Porter agreed. He
surmised that after he questioned his colleagues at the BOCONEO meeting on June 19th, he
would find that the applicants might have track records with the bouncing around municipalities.

Hocevar also addressed the Prevailing Wage issue and said that Wilson wanted to learn it. He
added that because Heilman's name was taken off the books when she left, the Building
Department was no longer receiving updates from the State. He stated that he and Wilson were



trying to correct this and were in contact with the Department of Commerce to get the Village
reregistered under Hocevar's name and Wilson to take care of the Prevailing Wage requirement.
He was letting the committee know about the issue and said that evidently somebody did not
want to do it, and that he had done it for many years.

Regarding Mitchell, Hocevar said that the Police Chief was on board and the Village would be
going to court. He added that Mitchell had a big dumpster in front of his house, but it still
looked bad. Schloss clarified that this was the resident on the comer ofLeaview. Hocevar asked
Schloss if he wanted to continue pursuing O'Malley.

Porter concluded the Building Committee meeting at 10:30 a.m.

-^
Ray Schlo s. Chairman

Prepared by Leslie Galicki



Building Committee Meeting
Wednesday, July 31, 2019 8:00 a.m.

Present: Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter

Visitors: Building Inspector Hocevar, Mayor Koons, Councilmember Carroll

The committee discussed sharing a Building/Zoning Inspector with Chagrin Falls or the Village
ofWoodmere. Nothing was concluded.

Ray Schloss, Chairman

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski as reported by Ray Schloss



Building Committee Meeting
Tuesday, July 2, 2019 9:00 a.m.

Present: Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter, Building Inspector Hocevar

Those present went through the resumes/applications submitted for the Part-Time
Building/Zoning Inspector for the Village. They narrowed the candidates down to John Dasher
and Robert Baker. Schloss asked Fiscal Officer Romanowski to set up interviews for Thursday,
July 11, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. and 9:45 a.m.

The Committee would like to get Kris Wilson more involved with zoning and drive around the
Village and check lawns and misc. zoning issues. This would need Council's approval.

They would like Dave Hocevar to stay on until a suitable Building/Zoning Inspector could be
found.

After August, Kris will not do the Board Clerk work. This would need Council's approval.

Meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m.

-7f

Ray Schloss, jChairman /

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski as reported by Ray Schloss



Building Committee Meeting
Wednesday, July 31, 2019 9:00 a.m.

Present: Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter

Visitors: Building Inspector Hocevar, Mayor Koons

The committee interviewed an applicant for the Building/Zoning Inspector position.

Ray Schloss, Chairman

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski as reported by Ray Schloss



Building Committee and Human Resources Committee Meeting
Monday, August 19 6:30 p.m.

Present: Schloss, Galicki, Carroll, Porter, Mayor Koons, Fiscal Officer Romanowski

Schloss advised he called the joint meeting of the Building and Human Resource Committees to
determine what should be done with the Building Department, especially since the Building Department
Secretary had submitted her resignation. Schloss stated that the first issue to address should be what
would be done between the present and September 10th, which would be the Building Department
Secretary's last day. Schloss' said there was a lot of useful information on the computer and he thought
that the Fiscal Officer and/or the Administrative Assistant should go over and train with the Building
Department Secretary for the next couple of weeks so that they understand the paperwork.

Carroll said the Village would have to replace the position and recommended utilizing the combined
Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk job description. In the meantime, while the job was being
advertised, there would be some other administrative issues that needed to be figured out. The Fiscal
Officer, Administrative Assistant, or possibly the person hired for the position could help with the
transition. He thought this would make the transition easier to hire someone in the combined position.

Galicki said he would not get into too many specifics about who would be used for the turnover because
otherwise he would recuse himself of the issue. He stated it would be nice to know the resolution in terms
of whether the position would be combined or not. Galicki added that the Village would have to post for
the vacancy in terms of advertising the position and try to fill it as soon as possible. In the interim, he
agreed some kind of turnover would be necessary.

Porter said if someone could be found to be both the Building Department Secretary and the Board
Secretary and compensated accordingly, that would be ideal. He thought based on what they would find
with the quantity and quality of the applicants, both positions could be filled. Porter was concerned that
the Village would not be able to find someone who would take both. He suggested advertising the
Building Department Secretary and the Board Secretary position and see what the response was, and then
seek to fill the position before the Building Secretary left. Ideally, by a week before the Building
Secretary leaves, the new person could shadow her to transition. Porter suggested posting the job opening
this week, waiting a couple of weeks for responses, doing some interviews, and, the Mayor would then be
the appointing authority.

Schloss asked the Fiscal Officer how many applications she had received. She explained that she posted
the Board Clerk job in the Chagrin Valley Times and on Indeed.com. As of August 18th, she had fifteen
applications that she needed to review. Porter added that the Board Secretary position was already being
advertised, and the Fiscal Officer stated they would need to see if those applicants would be interested in
the combined job, or if they just wanted the 5 to 40 hours per month as it was posted.

Carroll suggested inquiring whether the applicants were interested in both. He also thought it should be
advertised as the combined position based on the job description Council passed and adopted. Schloss
said he would like the ad in the paper this week if possible.

Porter asked if the current applicants would have to resubmit applications for the new job position, and
Carroll thought they could just be contacted to determine their interest in the combined position. Porter
asked if they wanted to consider zoning experience or Building Department experience in the ad that



would be run. Galicki said the ad could state that such experience would be desired, but Council should
not get hung up on that level of experience. He added that the current Board Secretary did not have
experience before taking the job, nor did the former Building Inspector when she started.

The Mayor asked if they were keeping the Building Department. Carroll advised he was not saying that
they were closing or keeping it. Regardless, the Village would need a secretary in the position, as well as
a Zoning Inspector. Porter stated the Village was keeping the Building Department if only for a full or
part-time Zoning Inspector and a Board Secretary because by law the Village must have a Zoning
Inspector. He added that if they could find one person to fill both jobs, that would be great.

Schloss stated that it appeared that Dave Hocevar, the contracted Building Inspector, would stick around
until the matter was resolved. Porter stated Hocevar's contract ran until next year. Carroll pointed out the
contract with Hocevar was month to month, and Porter stated it was a 30-day termination. The Fiscal
Officer spoke with the Solicitor about this, and it was clarified that Hocevar could simply tell the Village
at the end of a month that he was finished. Schloss said that Hocevar said he had been with the Village
for 40 years and would not do that to the Village.

Porter indicated that there were three job descriptions; one for Building Department Secretary, one for
Board Secretary, and one for a combined position. Carroll said this was correct and the Village would
advertise for the combined position. Porter agreed.

Schloss wanted to discuss whether the Building Department would remain open or be closing. Carroll
asked if Council would be accepting the Board Secretary's resignation at the Regular Council meeting
that evening. Schloss said that was correct. Porter said it was a formality, but yes. Schloss asked what
would happen if she were to change her mind. Porter stated that in the past Council accepted a
withdrawal of the resignation.

Porter reviewed Hocevar's contract relative to the 30-day notice.

Schloss asked again what Council was going to do with the Building Department. Carroll stated the
failsafe would be to go to the county. He further stated that the Village was required to have zoning, so
regardless of the outcome, someone must be hired to do zoning. On the building side of it, the Village
could look at a collaborative effort. For nine months, the Village had run a part-time Building
Department and things were getting done. No one had come to Council meetings upset. Carroll said the
Village had tried the part-time route and could not find a qualified Building Inspector, according to the
Building Committee, who looked at the resumes. If nothing could be done collaboratively. Council must
take a serious look at going to the county. Schloss stated that Council needed to identify a date for the
decision to be made like November 1st, December 31st, etc. Porter stated the Village had Hocevar until
next year, and the Village might want to look around and advertise again for Building Inspectors. The
previous time, the Committee did not get much, but things change. Porter speculated that perhaps the
timing was not right. He said there were only two applicants who were remotely qualified, one of whom
did not show up for his interview. The other applicant did not meet the Village's standards. Porter agreed
with Carroll that the failsafe was the county.

Galicki recommended establishing the direction Council would be heading by the end of the year with a
firm decision because with the new year there would be the collection of fees from registering contractors.
He explained that if fees were collected and then the Building Department was disestablished, it would be



unfair to the contractors and refunds would be necessary. He thought that Council needed to know the
direction by January 1, 2020.

Porter stated the contractors would be given refunds and then sent to the county. Carroll said this would
be cumbersome. Carroll asked the Mayor if he had spoken to Woodmere and Chagrin Falls and said this
was a possible option. The Mayor stated that Woodmere was hurting and could not find anybody.
Galicki clarified that Woodmere did not have a Building Inspector now and was looking for one. The
Mayor stated this was correct. Carroll asked if they were looking for full-time or part-time, and the
Mayor said part-time. Schloss asked about Chagrin Falls, which the Mayor had mentioned. The Mayor
replied that Harry had not said anything to Chagrin, and as far as he knew, Harry was still there and had
three years left. Galicki added that Chagrin had an inspector, but he did not have all the certifications.
The Village would be in a situation where the services of someone like Hocevar or the county would still
be needed. He questioned why the Village would go to the county for one thing but not everything.
Galicki did not know how this would be viewed by the county. Porter suggested outsourcing but had
heard mix reviews about that. The Mayor said he had not heard anything good about it, and Porter said it
was better than nothing.

Carroll advised it was difficult because contractors were working, and this was an issue with trying to find
someone. Part-time would be very difficult. The Mayor stated that the Village would have to pay big
bucks to get someone part-time. Carroll said that the county was an option and the Village would have a
part-time Zoning Inspector. Schloss asked if the Village needed to reach out to the county now. Carroll
suggested contacting the county and asking what the transition would look like. Porter stated the
transition would be pretty quick and involved telling the County Commissioners and the Mayor that the
Village wanted the county Building Department to act for the Village. The Commissioners would have to
vote to accept to allow it.

Galicki asked if first there was discussion with the county, or would the issue of transition be brought to
Council first for a vote on the direction to be taken. Porter thought Council should weigh in first. Galicki
said that if it was approved by Council, the Village could then advertise for a Zoning Inspector. The
Village could still maintain the Administrative Assistant and the Board Clerk positions that could be
standalone positions. He added that several of the townships have Zoning Inspectors who work a day or
two a week. They set up office hours and it seemed everything could be accomplished during this time.

The Mayor stated it was on the agenda for the Regular Council meeting that night, "Building Department
Personnel Structure. " He said they should do it that night.

The Fiscal Officer asked if an ad was to be placed for an Administrative Assistant for the Building
Department with the new job description. She added that although the Village had Hocevar, who was
more Building Inspector and not as much zoning, it would still require a Zoning Inspector regardless of
what Council decided about the Building Department. Thus, she was asking if she should run an ad for
Zoning Inspector as well. Galicki stated it was necessary to solve the issue of what direction Council
wanted to go, and that would then be another ad. He did not envision that the Administrative Assistant
and Zoning Inspector would be combined. The Fiscal Officer explained that she did not think so either.
Galicki added that this way if the Village had a part-time Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, this
person could maintain some presence in the office during the week where a Zoning Inspector might do
business one or two days a week. He said they would not have to be there at the same time, and then the
Village would have someone there answering phones and mail, and a part-time Zoning Inspector. The
Fiscal Officer stated that the last ad said Building/Zoning and stated that it seemed the Building



Inspectors have certifications and feel they are above Zoning. She felt if the Village ran an ad for Zoning
Inspector only, the Village would get some feedback. The Village must have a Zoning Inspector. If the
county were to do just the building, the Village would have a Zoning Inspector to do zoning. Schloss
suggested bringing it up for a vote at the Council meeting.

Porter added that Hocevar was currently doing Building and Zoning, and the Village was not under a time
crunch to find a Zoning Inspector. He said there were virtually no requirements to be a Zoning Inspector.
If the Village were to have a Building Department Secretary and a Board Clerk who was also the Zoning
Inspector and was compensated accordingly, there would be three part-time jobs but one person who
could do it during the week. Carroll said he was very confused. He asked Porter if this person was going
to be Zoning Inspector, Administrative Assistant, and Board Secretary. Carroll said he would separate
Zoning Inspector and leave the combined Administrative Assistant/Board Secretary position. Porter said
he agreed with that. Carroll said the Zoning Inspector would be a separate position. Galicki said he also
did not like bundling the three positions together. Summarizing, Carroll said the Village could have two
part-time positions and go to the county for the Building Department matters.

The Mayor stated that the committees should go to Council that night and say that they were getting out
of the Building Department and were looking for an Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk and a Zoning
Inspector and contracting with the county. Done.

Galicki said they would approach Council to discuss the future of the Building Department. Depending
on the discussion and if Council elected to disestablish the Building Department, the next act would be to
contact the county and advertise for a Zoning Inspector. No matter what, the Village must advertise for
an Administrative Assistant regardless of what was done with the Building Department. This part was
stand alone, whether Council chose to keep the Building Department or not. Galicki said it all relied on
what direction Council wanted to go with the Building Department. Porter added that if there were no
full-time positions for a Building Official, the Village would get nothing. He clarified to say the Village
would have a hard time keeping a Building Department part-time. Without a full-time Building Official,
he did not believe the Village could have a viable Building Department.

The Fiscal Officer asked if the Board Clerk could be combined with the Zoning Inspector. Galicki said he
would not go down that direction. The Fiscal Officer said that she had heard that if the Village were to be
sued, it would be about zoning, and then whatever the minutes said would be submitted to court. Thus,
the Village would not want the person doing the inspection preparing minutes and suggested the need for
a separation of duties. She understood this was the reason it was necessary to have two people, the
secretary who was responsible for the records and then the Inspector. Porter added this was a way for the
Administrative Assistant to fleet up to be the Zoning Inspector.

The Mayor stated that by the end of September, the Village could have an Administrative Assistant and
Board Secretary working 25 hours a week, may have a Zoning Inspector, have the county take over, and
Hocevar gone after the end of September if he did his thirty day notice. Carroll stated this would be a
very aggressive timeline. He would look at this as happening by the end of the year for the transition to
take place. Porter agreed. Carroll explained that there would be training of the Zoning Inspector that
perhaps Hocevar would provide. He noted how supportive Hocevar had been. Carroll thought this
timeline would keep it clean. Porter added that it would give the Village time to inform people.

Porter lamented not being able to find a suitable part-time Building Official, and Galicki added that
Council did due diligence to find one to maintain the Building Department. Galicki added that it would



be good for the citizens, the employees, and the county to have a full quarter to transition. Schloss asked
if the Village could work with Russell or Bainbridge with part-time zoning. Galicki said Bainbridge
might not have a lot of flexibility with their zoning personnel with their current projects. Regarding
Russell, Carroll said it might be a possibility to partner with them. He liked the idea of collaboration.
Schloss asked if Russell should be contacted. Galicki advised that first the committees should see how it
played out in Council. Carroll believed it was something the Village should consider. Galicki suggested
that perhaps the Village could find someone it used one or two days a week that would be less expensive
than partnering, but agreed it required analysis.

Schloss asked why the Village could not make Chief Rizzo the Zoning Inspector.

Galicki said if there was a vote taken, the question should be, 'where do we want to be at the end of next
year?' not tomorrow. Schloss asked that the matter be resolved by December. Galicki said it had been
nearly a year.

Carroll stated the first thing Council needed to do was to accept the resignation of the Building
Department Secretary. Then Council could discuss the Building Department and how the position would
be advertised, about placing an ad, and discuss the Building Department to see what Council's flavor was
on it. After that, zoning could be addressed.

The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m.

Ray Schloss, Chairman Building Committee Dennis Galicki, Chairman HR Committee

Prepared by Leslie Galicki



Present:

Building Committee Meeting
Thursday, August 22, 2019

Chairman Schloss, Building Inspector Hocevar, Mayor Koons,
Solicitor Matheney

The Mayor stated regarding septic standards, he provided 22 pages of information. He reported
that a man moved into South Russell a year or two ago, Tom Mulcahy, who bought Ann
Dunning's house, put $22,000 into the septic system and wants to know why he has to have it
cleaned out every two years. The Mayor told him that it was the standard of the Village and had
been since 1996. He provided the Mayor with information, and had his septic tank cleaned. The
Solicitor spoke with Dave Sage, Geauga County Health District, who said they don't have a
bright line rule, nor does the State of Ohio as far as how often the systems must be pumped. As
a result, it is up to the local municipalities to have an ordinance. The recommendation was
pumping every two to three years. Sage told the Solicitor that with the newer systems,
depending on usage, there might be a reason to pump more frequently. He suggested getting
information from the manufacturer of the system and/or from a septic hauler that can verify the
system was new and there was no need for pumping every two years. The Solicitor felt that the
Village was on target with its two-year requirement, but it would be up to the Village to revise
the ordinance. The Mayor stated this information may be in the paperwork from the installer,
Mod Ziegler. He did not know that the Village wanted to "go there."

Hocevar stated that in 1990, the EPA was pushing the Village to remove the sanitary sewers in
the eastern part of the Village and maintain a septic pumping system. He and Bob Weiss put
together a two-year proposal and submitted it to the EPA. The EPA accepted it. Within the last
week or two, he had talked to three pumpers who told him two years was not out of line even
with the new systems. They questioned how the Village was going to regulate two people from
seven. If someone sold the house and seven people moved in instead of two, over two years the
system would be shot. Their recommendation to Hocevar was that two years was not being
unrealistic. Paying a sewer bill would cost $400 a year. The Solicitor agreed. Hocevar then
asked what the difference would be between $400 every two years and $400 a year.

Schloss asked what Mulcahy was requesting. The Mayor said Mulcahy had a letter from the
installer and wanted to know if he could be exempt. The Mayor said he was nice but persistent.
Mulcahy wanted to see something done for him and possibly for some of the single people who
live on the street. The Mayor told him that at the end of the street where Momingside comes
together with Garden Park, it smells because of someone's septic system. The Mayor said
Mulcahy acknowledged this. The Mayor said Mulcahy acknowledged like "got me. " The
Mayor offered to Mulcahy that the Village would look at his paperwork, think about it, and be
back in touch. Mulcahy told the Mayor that after the Council meeting on September 9th, he
would be back asking for an exemption but would be really nice about it. The Mayor's thought
was to read through the paperwork to see if there was anything that would make them want to
talk about it. If not, it was two years and let him pursue it. The Solicitor read from the
paperwork provided by the Mayor, "in my professional opinion, the recommended pumping
schedule for a tank this size with two residents would be every four years. Pumping the septic
tank more frequent could eliminate the aerobic bacteria. " The Solicitor surmised that aerobic



bacteria was important. The Solicitor asked if an exemption had ever been granted, and the
Mayor stated it would be a can of worms, and the Solicitor and Schloss agreed. The Mayor said
that the resident next to Mulcahy was single and had a new system, and the guy next to him was
single and had a 40-year-old system. The Mayor said it would be a mess. Hocevar explained
that there are actually four or five different systems they put in. Mulcahy got the state of the art
because of the topography of his land. According to Hocevar, the resident had to go through all
this "ultraviolet light, the pumping station, the whole thing. " Schloss asked when Mulcahy put it
in. Hocevar replied it was two years ago. Hocevar said he was mandated to get it. The Mayor
recommended reading the information but said at the Council meeting he did not think they were
ready to take any sort of action or even have it discussed. The Solicitor advised that if he were to
come to the meeting and wanted to discuss it, and the Mayor interjected that Mulcahy would
come the day after, that he was that kind of guy who would be polite and not want to create a
scene.

Hocevar stated he was nice but questioned why he should spend that kind of money on it. The
Solicitor asked if the Village enforced this ordinance if someone did not get the system pumped
every two years. Hocevar said "yes." The Solicitor asked how the Village finds out. Hocevar
said they keep track of all of it in the Building Department with software. A letter pops up when
the system is due, and the resident has 30 days to get it pumped. The pumping service provides
the resident a slip to prove they had it done. It was part of the deal the Village had with Lake
Louise being the instigator of the whole EPA issue. The Mayor corrected Hocevar to say it was
Bellwood Lake. Hocevar addressed when Bellwood Lake put their sewers in and added that
Lake Louise was another community where none of their septic tanks passed and raw sewage
was going into the ditches. The Mayor concluded the committee would read the 22 pages and
talk about it some other time if the committee wants to talk about it.

The Mayor addressed 48 Daisy Lane and said the neighbors to the south would be at the
September 9th Council meeting complaining about the lighting. The Mayor asked Hocevar if
there was anything that controlled residential lighting. Hocevar said he thought it was a stretch
and that the Solicitor had also looked at it. He said there were Villages out there that would take
readings 10 feet from the light fixture, but he did not know if the Village wanted to go to that
extreme. According to Hocevar, this was the first complaint the Village had in 30 some years.
He said it was a legitimate complaint, but it was like oil and water in the neighborhood. If there
weren't ruffled feathers, the resident would do the opposite. The Mayor asked ifHocevar told
the Committee about the fence, and that Hank, the resident, wanted to put in a fence. Hocevar
said that he wanted to put a six-foot board on board fence around the property and paint it red,
white and blue. Hocevar asked him not to start trouble. Hocevar said there was still issues of
chicken going across the yard and said he documents the time chickens mn across his yard. A
letter was sent to the resident about the chickens and they were not happy when Hocevar met
with them. Hocevar said he told them, "it is what it is. Keep your chickens in a pen. " The
Mayor stated the resident south of Hank will be at the September 9th Council meeting and was
supposed to have been at the last Council meeting and told the Building Secretary he had the
wrong date. He will be very aggressive but will be in the visitor section. Council will hear what
he has to say and move on.



Schloss said he was under the impression that the residents had worked this out amongst
themselves and were okay with the lighting. Hocevar stated this was all except one. The Mayor
said it was a feud. He stated that the residents had letters flying back and forth and then on a
weekend, 19 people came and visited Hank to welcome him to the neighborhood. Schloss said
the red, white, and blue fence would be crazy. Hocevar said he just said that to irritate Hocevar.
The Mayor said Hank had called him, but he had not called him back. Hocevar said he wanted
an occupancy certificate, and Hocevar had discussed this with the Solicitor. Because of the ABR
situation. Hank refused to go back. Hocevar said the Building Secretary smoothed it over a little,
but he refused to go back. He wanted to put an awning outside of his house where the neighbors
were complaining, and Hocevar said he could not put it there. Schloss asked if this was where
the lights were. Hocevar replied yes. He told Hank he could not put it there according to the
Village zoning. The Solicitor agreed. The Solicitor asked if he had put it up, and Hocevar said
no, and thought he was saying it just to irritate him. Hocevar said the resident would say he was
going to put it up and Hocevar would tell him he would him in court.

The Mayor said the other issue with Hank was that the houses from Hank's house north along
Daisy towards Bell had water issues in their backyards. The Mayor said, he had walked the
property last Friday with the Land Conservancy, which he told Hank he would do to see what
could be done. The Mayor said what he would tell Hank is to deal with the Chagrin River
Watershed Partners. There is an issue of four houses with wet backyards. And then there is a
pond at the north that overflows. He talked about French drains at one point. Hocevar said he
was still talking about it. Hocevar told him he could do it if he liked, and he spoke to the Street
Commissioner and the Street Commissioner said the Village could do it, but ifHocevar told him
he could not do it, it would probably be in already. The Mayor said he would let Hocevar know
after he talked to "this guy".

The Mayor addressed alternates to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) and Planning
Commission (PC). He said if the Village went this route, his thought was that there should be
some sort of prep work so they don't just end up boom here you are, sitting down at a ZBA or
PC meeting not even knowing the people they are sitting next to. And 20 minutes later they are
asked to vote, which he thought was ridiculous. His thought was for the individuals to attend at
least one meeting over a couple of months, give them a zoning book, have them look and see if
they want to be an alternate so they are prepared, and they would get the minutes and the
agendas. When the time came, when an alternate was needed, that person would be there. Right
now, the Mayor said, it was cold turkey and he thought his idea was better. He thought this came
up two years before where the idea that the prospective alternate would be propped and would
have had the zoning book. They would also have sat in on the meetings. They would have met
everybody, but he would only require them to come to one meeting to get a feel for it. The
Solicitor asked if they did this with the actual members, and whether the actual members
received training. The Mayor said they did not. The Solicitor thought it would be a great idea to
encourage it. The Mayor said the last two people he put on, including Terry Brennan, walked in
and sat down, shook hands, and 20 minutes later voted. Brennan told the Mayor when he walked
out that if he had been on longer, he probably would have voted a different way. Brennan was a
corporate lawyer and knew what he was doing. The Solicitor said that was interesting. Schloss
asked how many members were on ZBA and the Mayor replied five (5). Schloss asked what the
Mayor was proposing, and the Mayor said, "two waiting in the wings." Schloss clarified that



this was two alternates, and he asked whether no one showed up the night before. The Solicitor
said there were two people that showed up. Chairman Dave Maistros and Laura LaChapelle were
present. They thought George Clemens would be attending, but it turned out he could not come.
Schloss asked if at least three were needed, and the Solicitor said this was correct for a quorum.
With three, a unanimous vote would be necessary in order to pass the variance. There could not
be two vs. one. This had to always be explained to the applicant, too, because if there were a
five-member board, the chances of getting three votes over five was easier than a unanimous
three people. The applicant needed to know that if there were only three, unanimity is required.
The Solicitor said the gentleman who stepped in was blindsided, but his questions were fantastic.
The Mayor stated he had Bill Stone and Heidi Baumgart, who expressed interest in ZBA, attend
the meeting the previous night. When there was no third person. Stone said he would do it. The
Mayor stated he swore him in, and Stone could handle the meeting and he could resign the
following day, or he may stay on. The Solicitor told the Mayor to keep in mind that the Mayor
put him in because there was a vacancy because Terry Brennan moved out of the Village and
could no longer serve. There was a vacancy and Stone was appointed to that vacancy. It was not
like he was an alternate. He was now a board member until he resigned. The Solicitor asked the
Mayor if Stone would resign, and the Mayor said he was tempted. The Mayor met with him a
couple of weeks ago because the Mayor wanted him to be the Zoning Inspector. The Solicitor
asked if he was interested, and the Mayor said Stone ran a home inspection business and was
working 60 hours a week and had a battle with cancer. Stone's concern was $12,000 health
insurance; he had it now and did not want to lose it. The Mayor said Stone was tempted to
consider it. According to the Mayor, he came to the Village with Bill Joyce, and lives on
Fairview where Joyce put up that house and wanted to put in more houses. He was the bridge
between the neighbors, who were going crazy, and the ZBA. Maistros remembered him. The
Mayor thought he would know more about zoning than anyone else and came in prepared but
didn't have a leg to stand on against Joyce from what he remembered. The Mayor said he just
kind of 'okay, we can't do this. ' So, some of those people have a house that is on three different
lots. The Solicitor said she remembered.

Hocevar ask if the Village would be advertising for alternates, and the Mayor replied yes and
that it was in the newsletter. The Solicitor clarified that the Mayor was saying the ads were
placed for Board Secretary and Administrative Assistant. The Mayor said that yes, there was.
The Solicitor questioned that it was for alternates. The Mayor said he did not know if it said
alternate, but he thought it did. Schloss said he thought it did as well and suggested asking the
Fiscal Officer. The Mayor said he was almost sure. The Solicitor stated that Council was not
necessarily on board with the alternates and they did not pass an ordinance. The Mayor said no.
The Solicitor asked whether the Village was looking for alternates or was this to fill Terry
Brennan's vacant seat. The Mayor said he could not remember. Hocevar said a vacancy still
needed to be filled without the alternates. The Solicitor explained that it was now filled unless
Stone stepped down. The Mayor said that George Clemens would be next. The Solicitor agreed
but said he had not yet resigned. The Solicitor explained that Brennan had resigned. Hocevar
said he thought Clemens was out too. The Solicitor said she did not hear him say he had
resigned. Hocevar heard through the grapevine that he was going to. The Solicitor said this was
good to know. Hocevar suggested talking to him to make sure that he was going to stay or not
stay. The Mayor said he would check with Clemens. The Mayor was almost sure that he put in
the newsletter that the Village was looking for alternates. He stated that the Village had done



this in 2017 looking for people to serve and nobody stepped forward. The Solicitor repeated that
she thought Council was not for the alternate concept. She reminded the Mayor that she was
getting ready to prepare the ordinance, and that there was an ordinance two years ago, but it did
not include how the voting would occur and that the plan was to change it for the next Council
meeting. The Mayor thought it was supposed to be in the next newsletter. The Solicitor
questioned this. The Mayor said he put it in the newsletter. The Solicitor thought it was to fill
the vacancy. The Mayor thought maybe it said vacancy. Schloss asked for clarification that
there are five people that are currently on ZBA, but only three showed up to the meeting. The
Mayor said "two. " Schloss asked why the other ones did not show up. He asked if they were not
responsible to know that this was an important meeting. He asked if this happened all the time.
The Solicitor said she did not know that it happened all the time. The Mayor stated that
Brennan moved to Chagrin and Andy Hitchcock was on vacation. George Clemens said he was
going to show but did not. Schloss said it was not acceptable. The Solicitor agreed but said it
happened. Schloss concluded that there was a need for alternates without question. The
Solicitor said she thought it was a good move.

The Mayor asked the Solicitor if they had alternates and the Solicitor replied that Bainbridge,
Chester, and Auburn have alternates. The Solicitor did not know about Russell. Schloss said
Chagrin did. Schloss asked what the downside to having alternates was. The Solicitor said she
did not know either. Schloss said it would be stupid not to. The Mayor told Schloss frankly that
if it was somebody else who had proposed it, Council would have gone along with it. He
thought it was too much power coming to the Mayor. He thought it was an ego thing. Schloss
said this was an important position and there were all kinds of people out there who had to get
their properties taken care of etc. To not to be able to do this was wrong, he thought. Regarding
the case before the ZBA, the Mayor said if Bill Stone didn't step in it would have had to be
postponed, it would have been another month. Schloss said this was not fair, and the Mayor
agreed.

The Mayor reiterated that the alternates would attend one meeting, there would be a waiting
period of three months or six months. The Solicitor said she would not recommend this. She
understood the need to understand the zoning book, but thought they could jump right in.
Schloss asked if they stayed on the issue until it was over. The Solicitor said she thought that
was important. For example, if with last night's ZBA meeting, the issue was tabled for some
reason, if it was a different composition of board, it would be really tough. She thought the
alternate should stay on until the conclusion of the matter. It would be difficult to switch it up
because otherwise they would be looking at minutes, and honestly there weren't any minutes to
look at. She said it was really hard to keep the memory over the course of a month. Since she
had been Solicitor, she had not seen one thing tabled at ZBA. Everything seemed to have been
taken care of at that meeting. At PC, some things had been tabled, and it could be important to
stay on to the end. Schloss asked whether Council could be on the boards and the Solicitor said
she did not know for ZBA. She said for ZBA, it was the Mayor's choice. The IVtayor stated that
for PC, he nominated Porter and Council voted him down. The Solicitor agreed that Council
must approve PC. She said another consideration if Council agreed to do alternates for ZBA and
PC, ZBA appointees would be whomever the Mayor chose, but PC would be subject to approval
by Council and there might be two different ordinances involved. Schloss directed the Solicitor
to check this out, and she said she would do so.



Schloss asked how many items were on the agenda for the ZBA meeting, and the Solicitor said
just one. The Solicitor said they did wait a half-hour for Clemens. The Mayor said the other
reason the Village did not have alternates was because when he proposed this two years ago,
some of the members ofZBA and PC were lukewarm and thought no one could replace them.
Schloss suggested this was an ego trip. Mayor said this was the feeling he had.

The Mayor stated that the Building Department Secretary was leaving. He said, "If the thought,
if it is ever proposed, that the Councilman's wife becomes the zoning or receives any additional
hours, I will not interview her. I will not appoint her. I think it was wrong. If Leslie is given
anything, I think that's a mistake. I think you got. We don't have a nepotism rule, but I think
she is going to stay there and do her 20 hours or whatever. " Schloss stated, "I don't think she
wants that, anything like that.". The Mayor said, "Okay. I just wanted to let you know."
Schloss said, "I had not heard that mentioned." Hocevar said, "She was good with Danielle to
come over there". Mayor said, "Yes". Hocevar said, "She was okay with that. " The Mayor
said, "yeah. " Hocevar said, "Whatever she thinks she is going to learn in two weeks, God bless
her. By the time you get through the software. We are here to just help. Work together on this
to make something happen, that's all we care about, right?" Schloss said, "Yes sir." The Mayor
stated, "There is bad blood and my concern when the day comes that Leslie gets trained, Kris
won't be there." The Solicitor said, "That's a big problem. " The Mayor said, "It is. It is a real
big problem." Solicitor said, "An employee problem actually. Remember she is here until the
10th." Hocevar said, "But it wasn't instigated by her." The Solicitor said, "Understood, but I
mean, again, she did say until the 10t , otherwise, what? I understand that there are emotions,
but we do have to find out the passwords. We have to get training because what if we do not
find somebody to take over by the time she leaves, we want to make sure that things get
processed. I mean it is still open. The Building Department is still open. " Hocevar said, "Yeah,
right. " Solicitor said, "That is my only concern. " Mayor said, "Yeah. But not to say nepotism,
but I don't see any change coming." Schloss said, "I understand." The Mayor said, "I've heard
from enough people." Hocevar said, " If that's the bottom-line Bill, let me try to ease that out a
little bit. I mean all we care about is getting somebody trained. I mean I know where she is
coming from. I know where you are coming from." Mayor said, "Okay." Schloss said, "So you
are just going to mention something to Danielle then about going over there to let her take care
of it. " Mayor said, "I've got to tell you. I'm umm, at the Council meeting Monday night, I said I
need a week to smooth this over. Tuesday morning the Fiscal Officer called and told Kris we are
on our way; we are coming over. I hadn't even had a chance to tell Kris. And that's another
issue. " Hocevar said, "There is an option that they just did over there in Moreland Hills. A temp
service. " Solicitor said, "Yes. " Hocevar said, "And I thought it was bullshit, excuse me, but you
know what, the girl seems like she is grasping pretty good. " Solicitor said, "Yeah, Kris even
mentioned that to me on Monday morning. " Hocevar said, "I think that would smooth
everything, get a temp. " Schloss said, "It was mentioned up here too, and I think I am the one
that said we've got two people here, but maybe I have to eat my words." Solicitor said, "Here is
the thing. I mean. I'm just saying, Danielle is pretty busy as Fiscal Officer. And I know that
everyone thinks that she can just take it on because she can, she is very efficient and she will get
it done, there is no question. But I don't know whether it is entirely fair. This is budget time. I
don't know that she is going to be able to spend a full two weeks over there. " Hocevar said,
"No, I don't think so." Solicitor said, "That's why I was thinking a temp or. " Hocevar said, "A
temp. Somebody in finance in Moreland Hills had someone through the temp service and he



said I had a girl looking for a job. And I talked to Paul yesterday and I go 'How's that temp
working out because we had talked to her today and I says 'she sounds like she has been there a
while' because she is grasping on quickly. He says, 'She asks me questions. ' because you know
their new. You know if you are trying to be a lawyer, it isn't going to happen today. But it
might be an option to smooth everything out. " Solicitor said, "Yeah, maybe. " Mayor said, "I
wanted the week to attempt to smooth it out. And then to have her call her Tuesday morning, she
just 'bang'. (Hocevar comment unintelligible 22:48) Solicitor said, "Kris had called her and
talked to her on Monday about getting a temp, I think that is why that happened as I understand
it. " Hocevar said, "I didn't know that. But I just, different scenario was me talking to the guy in
Moreland Hills, 'We just got a temp. '" Schloss said, "Would you find out what the temp service
is if you could. Is that alright?" Hocevar said, "I didn't think they were any good, but after
hearing that, I thought maybe there is a shot. " Mayor said, "Now we are going to shift gears.

Mayor addressed a dead dear eaten by a coyote in the yard next to the home of resident, Donna
Bauman. She is blaming it on Barry who lives behind her and has a shed and animals. The
Mayor said there was nothing the Village did about dead animals, and that he would get back to
her by the end of the week. Bauman wanted Barry's property cleaned up. Hocevar said the
fellow called him. Hocevar thought the man's parents were in a nursing home, and he lived in
Colorado and had a sister in California. He told Hocevar he would give the best attempt to clean
up the property because they wanted to sell it. The Solicitor asked what was going on with the
property. Hocevar said the man's father collected junk back there, and they had some
dilapidated sheds and some pipe, but nothing you would see if you weren't going in there. He
said Bauman had somewhat of a legitimate complaint. The Mayor said she called a lot. Hocevar
said she did make a complaint and it fell through the cracks for him to go back out to look to see
if it had been cleaned up. But if worse came to worse, he would go out today to see if it was the
same scenario. He would call the man but needed to go look at it. The Mayor said he went back
into the yard and said you could see under the shed that somebody was probably living there. He
told Bauman the Village would not do much.

On 151 Lakeview, the Mayor said "we" have been on this guy to clean the ditch. He said this
was the guy who was a professor and is in prison now for pornography. Hocevar asked if it was
still bad. The Mayor said they mow but don't clean the ditch. He just happened to go by when
the neighbor was coming down and said he'd look into it. The neighbor told him the taxes had
not been paid and the neighbor would wait until the man got out. The Mayor wanted to check on
the residence and was going to knock on the door and tell them to mow their ditch. Hocevar said
the Building Department Secretary has a relationship with him because she felt sorry for him
because of the situation with his parents, so when she calls, he usually says ok because the grass
was a foot and a half high in the yard. The Mayor said it still is. The Mayor said he was just not
doing the ditch. Hocevar said he was by himself and had some substance abuse issues. Schloss
said it was a mess. Referring again to Barry, the Mayor stated "this guy's son" mowed the grass
and there was always a new American Flag and he kept up everything else except for the very
back yard and the Mayor did not want to throw him under the bus.

The Mayor said Mrs. Brown is scheduled for September 16th to be in court. The Solicitor said it
was later than this. Schloss said it was the 22"d or 23rd. He asked if he was expected to attend it.
The Solicitor said the Mayor would have to talk to Prosecutor Coyne. She said the Prosecutor



would probably reach out to Hocevar or the Chief to ask if the person was in compliance or what
the status was. Schloss said he wanted to go to court and the Solicitor said anyone could go. He
said the residents on either side had asked him to go. Hocevar said the one on the left-hand side
was going to show up too. Schloss said, "Eli Jones. " Schloss asked if he was being asked if he
had seen Mrs. Brown. Schloss said he had seen her from a distance, and she gave him the finger.
The Mayor said he had never seen her but had knocked on her door and left his card. Hocevar
said maybe it wasn't a finger, maybe it was 'come on in and have a cup of coffee. ' Schloss said
they had done quite a bit of work on their property. Hocevar said the back yard is a mess.
Schloss said that the back yard and the side was a mess and they had dog problems in there still.
The Solicitor stated as she understood it, Coyne would reach out to Hocevar or the Police Chief
to figure out if the resident was in compliance and if not in compliance then it would go forward.
She did not know if September 23rd was another pre-trial, but not an actual trial that would go on
that day. She was not sure. Hocevar asked if there was a way for the Village to gain entry to
that back gate. He said the Village had cut grass before and charged the residents. The Solicitor
asked if this was in the backyard. Hocevar said that the Village had done that too, but now there
was situation with a locked gate. The Solicitor said now that it was going to court, she would
want to ask Coyne about this. Hocevar said if they could do that, he could get the grass cut and
put it on the tax bill, but being a locked gate, he did not want to do that. The Solicitor agreed and
said there was a whole complaint process going on in the court so if something were to go on,
she had not been found guilty yet. She did not know that she would take those measures and go
in and actually go under her gate. Hocevar said he would not do it unless he heard from legal.
The Solicitor said she did not know if Coyne would say to go do that while the complaint was
going on. Hocevar asked what the outcome of the trial would be, would they put her in jail, or
fine her, and still nothing would be done. The Solicitor said usually there was a fine and at least
in the townships in the area, there was a fine and jail time. Jail time would almost always be
suspended giving them an opportunity, like another 30 days, to completely clean it up. On the
31st day if it was not cleaned up, they report directly to jail. Hocevar added that if she went to
jail, the Village still had grass to cut. The Solicitor said this was exactly the issue. The Mayor
said 'you' got to feed those dogs too. The Solicitor said that hopefully then they would go to the
hearing. Hocevar said he knocked on the window just to listen to the dogs and did not hear any
barking. He was trying to get in to talk to her. He did not hear any dogs after the complaint, so
he did not know how many dogs there were. Supposedly they had four. The Mayor asked if the
court time was known on the 23rd of September. Hocevar responded 10:00 o'clock but thought
he might be wrong. The Mayor said he was doing meals on wheels and would be right up there
and would like to sit in on it. He asked if it would be 20 minutes. The Solicitor did not know

and explained that it might not even go forward if she will comply by the date. Schloss said that
the two residents on both sides of that property want the Village to clean up the backyard, and
Schloss told them that the Village could not do that. He thought they kept coming back to bug
Hocevar, and Schloss told them the Village could not touch the backyard or go into a locked
gate. The Solicitor said that she did not think the Village could do this right now unless the
Village obtained some sort of warrant. Schloss said the Village had done all it could. The
Solicitor added that the judicial process was happening. The Mayor said the Village had done its
job. Hocevar said they may hear differently at a Council meeting with the neighbors. They did
not think Hocevar was doing anything. Schloss said he knew differently. Hocevar said that
Council would be hearing about it. The Mayor said, "he gets his five minutes, thank you very
much. " The Solicitor said they were supposed to be at the last Council meeting and were not



there. The Mayor said 'he' told the Building Department Secretary he had the wrong date. The
Solicitor said she thought that was the lighting people. The Mayor said, yes, apologized and
said, "the Joneses. " The Solicitor said yes, that this was different and that the committee was
talking about the Joneses.

The Mayor said that speaking of complaints, on June 3rd the Kormoses complained about
Hank's lights, and asked if there was something formal. He stated that they filled out an actual
complaint about the lights that the Village had to do or should have done on that when somebody
filed a complaint with the Building Department. Hocevar said there is a complaint form over
there. The Mayor said this is what they filled out. Hocevar continued saying that when they
came into the office, and then questioned if the Mayor had the complaint. The Mayor asked
what the Village was supposed to do. The Solicitor said she thought this had already been
addressed. Hocevar said the Village received the formal complaint from the resident about the
lights, which was pushed on to Council to come up with something with the light complaint.
The Mayor said "okay, we got nothing on it. " The Solicitor stated that Hocevar investigated it
too, and that the Village was good and had it. The Mayor stated the Village had pictures and
everything, and that he wanted to make sure.

The Mayor stated, "Henry Mitchell", and asked if there was a court date for him. The Solicitor
apologized and said she did not know. Hocevar said October. She asked if it was filed recently
and Hocevar said it was, that the Building Department Secretary looked it up yesterday. He
thought it was the 23 . The Mayor asked if the committee knew ifMitchell had a health issue.
Hocevar said he used to see him and he's like Hocevar's best buddy when he sees him on the
street. When he would get him on the phone he would start to complain, and his wife was ten
times worse. The Mayor said yes, he knew. Hocevar said the Village had a legitimate complaint
down there. Matt Brett's wife had been complaining about that house for ten to fifteen years.
The Village would send him letters and he would clean a little bit out and move the cars and the
Village would think everything was okay. Then he would go back again and there still was the
sameCrap sitting out there for all these years and he had to do something with it. Hocevar said
the first thing he was going to come at the Village with was going to be discrimination. The
Mayor agreed. Hocevar said he was so glad the Village was taking Brown before Mitchell.
Hocevar said that was a good thing. Schloss agreed and said the Village was doing something.

The Mayor asked if the tabled ordinance about the vehicles and all was overdone. He asked if it
was ever coming around again, about the comer and RV's. The Solicitor reminded the Mayor
that this was not about the RV's, for which there already was a Zoning Ordinance. It would be
up to the Building Committee and what they wanted to do. She said that Council had heard from
some residents who were not pleased, and that some of it was misinformation but some of it was
probably legitimate. The issue was really more along the lines of how enforceable this would be
on the people who were the issue. It might not be very enforceable because they would be
grandfathered in and then they would have to wait a year until it was discontinued. Then maybe
it could be enforced against them. The Solicitor did not know what Porter's feeling were on the
topic, and Schloss said he did not know either.

The Mayor said the last one was that a guy who lived across the street from the Mayor caught
him last night when the Mayor came home. His basement had flooded twice, and he had



somebody, a plumber, scope all the lines. The Mayor said, "we" ran the dye in his kitchen sink,
and it went out and went north like it should. They scoped everything around and it came in, it
went all the way around to behind the next street, Waterford. There is a concrete, what's it
called at the end of the pipe. Hocevar said, "wingwalls". The Mayor said the concrete was there
and the water flowed. He walked it during the rain. It came down and went under the interurban
to Bainbridge. The M^ayor talked to Karen Endress about it and she said to talk to the
homeowner, but it is a Bainbridge homeowner. This area and the flood of 2015, the guy who
lived at the bottom ofWaterford said the water was six feet deep back there. The Mayor said his
neighbor was claiming that when the Village gets these huge rains it backs all the way up hill to
his basement. Hocevar said he watched the two cameras go down the pipes and it was perfectly
free until it rains but going into Bainbridge there is stuff holding back water, and he asked the
Solicitor what the Village should do about it. The Solicitor said she did not know. He continued
to say that the guy's basement, there thousands and thousands of dollars' worth of damage.
Schloss asked what was blocking it. Hocevar said the Village's drainage system, the Village's
easement runs all the way back to Potomac into Bainbridge through the interurban and part of the
interurban drainage is blocked. The Solicitor asked, "really?" Hocevar said there was debris all
over. The Solicitor asked if the property owner on Potomac could talk to the homeowner in
Bainbridge. Hocevar said Bainbridge won't talk. The Solicitor clarified her question. She asked
if it was private property Hocevar was talking about in Bainbridge. The Mayor said yes that it
was somebody's house. The Solicitor asked if those two could talk to figure it out. She said it
sounded like a private issue and asked if there was Village property involved besides private
property, and the same with Bainbridge. Schloss asked if the Engineer should take a look at it.
The Mayor said that probably was not a bad idea to see what we can do at this point. The
Solicitor agreed. Hocevar said the homeowner could possibly put in a check valve. Schloss
said he thought this was something Eric should look into.

Schloss said the Bellwood ditch was flowing so nicely in the rain. The Mayor stated he wanted
to know why that situation occurred but wanted to finish the Building Committee meeting. He
asked if there was anything else. The Solicitor asked if it was the recommendation of the
Building Committee to Council to do Board alternates. The Mayor said he did not know without
Porter being there. She was just wondering because for the next Council meeting, she was trying
to figure out how to do the ordinances. The Mayor asked if the ordinance needed all that "stuff
about voting, three months, etc. Solicitor said not necessarily training, and she did not know
whether the Mayor wanted to do three months because the regular members don't do that. The
Mayor said they have about two minutes. Hocevar asked who would fight the issue of doing
something right. The Solicitor said he might be surprised. Hocevar said he was just saying it
was not right. The Solicitor said she couldn't agree more. The Solicitor said she could prepare
it. The Mayor said he did not think she needed the trivial stuff that they will receive the Zoning
Code Book and they must attend one meeting. The Solicitor said that they did have to finish out
the vote. The Mayor said to stay on the issue or however she wanted to call it. He said the issue
was the alternate participated in the discussion of the issue and remained on the issue and the
person they replaced would sit in the audience until that issue is over. The Solicitor said, "yes,
or they don't come."

Hocevar said the Mayor would hear at the next Council meeting from the gentleman who asked
for the variance, Spohn. Solicitor asked if it was the one that he revised and came back and it



was granted. Hocevar said yes. The Mayor said, "58". The Solicitor asked what was going on.
Hocevar said "he" felt like being a resident of the Village, he was treated very poorly by the
members of that board. There was a comment made to him that they were going to vote for the
issue anyway before the meeting started. The Solicitor said, "no way", that she did not believe
it. Hocevar said that this was what he said and that he was going to come before Council and
explain that he should be treated a little better as a resident. Hocevar said he was an arrogant guy
and a different guy, and he had some background with him too. The Solicitor said she was not at
the first meeting because Solicitor Hicks was at the first ZBA meeting. His variance was denied.
He was allowed to amend his application, which was kind of a big deal. He returned with his
amended application and it was granted. Hocevar said he agreed but wanted to give her a heads
up. He said he was coming to Council and was in the office yesterday and said he wanted to
come to Council because he felt he should be treated a little bit better. Schloss asked if the

man's name was Small and the Solicitor said "Shawn Spohn". The Mayor said 58 West Bel
Meadow". Hocevar said he was a cop in Chagrin and went on to the CIA and worked for them
for a while. Hocevar said it's like Hank, if you get to this military part of your life you're not
going to walk on this guy, so he's up against the wall just like Hank. He fought in a war, he's
fighting in undercover crap and it's all coming this way. Hocevar said it is the same scenario,
but Shawn was a decent guy you can talk to, and said he wanted to get involved with Council
and be at the next meeting. The Mayor asked, "Shawn Spohn?" Hocevar said he had a vehicle
that had all kinds of red white and blue stuff on the back and all kind of military stuff. The
Mayor asked whether he was the one who came to ask for a variance and basically said 'all my
other neighbors put in sheds and they never came to you. I'm coming to you being a legal
citizen and you're putting it to me. ' Hocevar said some of the sheds looked like they were 50
years old. Hocevar said he was a nice guy and he could deal with him. The Mayor stated,
"September 9th."

Schloss stated that Chuck at Femwood and Bell had the backyard that the Village cleaned out.
Schloss said there was so much wood back there and someone made him take the fence down

that they put up. The neighbors asked if there was any way possible to allow them just to put
that fence back, and they would be so appreciative. Hocevar stated that the letter sent by the
Village stated that the fence was put up without a permit, please come into the Building
Department to apply for the right permit. It was not three feet off the property line and was a
stockade fence, which was not permitted. The Solicitor asked who took it down and Hocevar
replied that it was the resident. The Solicitor asked whether he did this without even coming in
to try to get the permit? Schloss said the posts were still there, but the adjacent property owner
would love to have the fence because in the backyard there are jet skis and all kinds of wood and
it was a dump. The Solicitor asked if it was junk, and Schloss said it is junk. Hocevar said that
the last time he was there he stopped his car and he (the resident) walked up to the back of the
window and went like this. Schloss said like Mrs. Brown and that they were friends. Hocevar
said he said to have a nice day. The Mayor said when Chuck was in 8l grade he had a bad
teacher. The Solicitor asked if it was the Mayor and he said it was. Schloss said something
needed to be done because the neighbors were all up in arms about it. Hocevar asked if he had a
right to go walk on his property, should he knock, or how should it be handled because it was
hard. He added unless one of the neighbors would give him permission to go on their property
The Solicitor said this would be great if the neighbor gave permission. The Mayor said he



knocked on Chuck's door and he talked to the Mayor. Hocevar said he did not like him. Schloss
asked the Mayor to do it again, and the Mayor said he would visit Chuck.

The meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.

Ray S loss. Chairman

Prepared by Leslie Galicki





Building Committee/Human Resource Joint Committee Meeting
Wednesday, August 28, 2019 5:30 p.m.

Present: Building Committee - Chairman Schloss, Councilman Porter
HR Committee - Chairman Carroll, Councilman Galicki (arrived 6:25 p.m.)
Mayor William Koons (arrived at 6:45 p. m.)
Fiscal Officer Romanowski

At 5. 30 p. m., Schloss called the meeting to order, attendance taken. Porter made a motion to go
into Executive Session to conduct Building Department interviews, seconded by Schloss. Rofl
call: Ayes; Carroll, Porter & Schloss.

Galicki joined Executive Session at 6:25 p. m.

Joint Committee meeting reconvened at 6:45 p. m.

Mayor Koons arrived at 6:45 p.m.

Discussion was held regarding the two candidates interviewed; background, history, etc. While
both candidates had history working in government. Candidate #1 (N. G. ) stood out. She has 14
years' experience in multiple zoning-related positions, experience in using the same
Building/Zoning software SRV uses, an outgoing personality and a great recommendation from a
former co-worker.

It was the recommendation of the Building Committee and the HR Committee to the Mayor to
hirc Candidate #1 (N. G. ) for the part-time Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk position for up
to $20/hour with a 6-month probation/review. This is a 25-hour per week position.

The Mayor will interview both candidates on 9/3/19. There will be a Special Council meeting
held on 9/4/19 at 6:00 p.m. for the purposes of hiring a part-time Administrative Assistant/Board
Clerk contingent upon passing a pre-employment drug test. The hope is that the candidate will
accept the job and be able to work out an arrangement with her current employer to work 9/9/19
and 9/10/19 with the current Building Department Administrative Assistant for her last two days
of employment with the Village.

At 7:00 p.m , Porter made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Schloss. Voice vote; ayes, all.
Motion carried.

c
Ray Schloss, Chairman Building Committee Dennis Galicki, Chairman HR Committee

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski



Building Committee Meeting
Monday, September 16, 2019 - 9:00 a.m.

Present: Chairman Schloss, Committee Member Porter, Mayor Koons

The Mayor called the meeting to order at 8:59 a.m.

Mayor opened the meeting and referred to his agenda item about hiring Kris Wilson at
$22. 84/hour x 10 hours max to trail Nancy. Kris has offered to come in and asked if it could be
the same rate that Nancy is making. Mayor said brining Kris in as a crutch to help Nancy for up
to 10 hours would be a great thing to do. Porter and Schloss said they had no issue with that.
Porter inquired if 10 hours was enough. Schloss said Nancy didn't seem to think she would need
more than a couple hours.

Mayor said one issue Nancy had was two hours of travel time to come back to work for Zoning
Board of Appeals (ZBA) and Planning Commission meetings. Mayor said he doesn't have a
problem with that. The Village has always allowed the Board Secretary to do their thing. He
said Tomaro used to just submit her hours. That has always worked - it got a little out of hand
when one of the six the Village has had in the past four years, Nancy will be the sixth, just
worked, worked, worked, worked, but sometimes she just took forever, and that became an issue.
This would be new ground for the Village - paying travel time. Mayor said it was one of the
keys to get her to take the job. She is not going to be stuck driving from her home in the middle
of February at 7 p.m. for a 20-minute zoning meeting. He questioned how she would bill the
Village for that. Mayor said if this is what it takes to get Nancy to take the job, it is what he
would like to do; Schloss agreed. Porter said he has no problem with two hours of travel time.
Mayor said he didn't know if this could be an administrative procedure, or it is something the
Village has to take formal action on. He said this issue won't come up at the special meeting, all
that is being discussed is to discuss Kris.

Schloss asked how long the board meetings usually were. Mayor replied they could go on for a
couple of hours. Porter asked if it is two hours per meeting or how is that going to work. Mayor
said he would talk to her. IfABR is at 5:30 p.m., maybe on Tuesdays she should come in at
noon and work until the ABR meeting which would probably be over by 6:30 p.m. Mayor said
the Village may have to play it by ear and see where we are in a month. Schloss said when he
spoke to Nancy, she was concerned that if she got to the Village, the meeting could be cancelled
and that was her concern. Mayor said with the ABR, coming back for the second time just to
show them the colors, it could take only a few minutes - it could be a waste of her time. Mayor
said they will look at this again a month from now.

Mayor said issue #3 on his agenda was that he got a call from Rob Meyer, a builder who lives on
Deerfield, regarding 48 Daisy Lane. He ripped ABR and the Village regarding that house and
how it was permitted to be built. Mayor told Rob he would get back to him this week. The
resident at 48 Daisy does not have an occupancy permit yet and that has been a bone of
contention. The Solicitor said not to give him an occupancy permit and the owner said he would
just live there without it. Schloss and Porter agreed it was a horrible looking structure. Mayor
said at night, the light is shining in the big picture window of the neighbor.



Regarding lighting regulations and the issue Kormos came to Council about. Mayor is going to
have Nancy get regulations from other communities on their residential lighting standards.
Porter said measuring the intensity of light doesn't seem practical. The Village may want to go
to a system where they tell people the maximum wattage they can use as an outdoor lightbulb.

Mayor asked if they are looking for Nancy to eventually become the Zoning Inspector. Porter
said she certainly can do it, but there may be a conflict between what she does as the Building
Department, ABR, ZBA, PC Secretary and being the Zoning Inspector. That was one of the
Solicitor's concern. Porter said he is not sure there is really a conflict there, but the Village did
get a bunch of applicants, some of them are even qualified for the Zoning Inspector part-time.
Schloss said he would like to see Nancy do it if possible. Mayor said it would be a lot easier;
Schloss and Porter agreed. Schloss said she did it in Maple Heights, but she wasn't the full-
fledged Zoning Inspector, but she did a lot of that. Mayor said twice a week, maybe an hour at
most. Mayor is going to give her a tour of the Village and point out things. Schloss said he has
talked to Chief Rizzo about this, and he would be more than happy to volunteer for that. He said
he can make time for this, part-time, full-time, whatever. He doesn't know how that flies, but it
is a pretty good idea. The Mayor said in Hunting Valley the Police Chief does everything.
Mayor said he didn't like the Chief dealing with the rental house garbage. He likes the Police
Chief to be a Police Chief. In a year from now he doesn't want somebody to say we are
overstaffed at the Police Department if the Chief can spend all this time on other issues. Porter
said his concern is more of an enforcement thing. You would have a cop go out there and put a
note on the door that the individual is in violation of zoning code. You have the Chief as the
Inspector telling the police individuals to go to this house. Mayor said that seemed heavy
handed to him. Schloss said the Chief did most of the enforcing when Laura was here. Porter
said the cops would deliver the letters that Laura wrote. So, Laura would be doing it as the
Building Official, the cops doing it as the enforcement ami. If you combine the two together; the
simplest thing is if Nancy can do it. Porter went on to say the Village does have part-time
Zoning Inspector applicants who certainly are qualified. Porter said Barry Jacobs is qualified.
He actually got his license back and he is the Zoning Inspector in Claridon Township; and there
are other applicants as well, he is not the only one. Mayor said he would like to keep it to less
employees; Schloss agreed.

Mayor said regarding the Building Inspector, he wanted to know ifSRV should keep limping
along with Dave. Porter asked what choice the Village has. Mayor said he spoke to the Mayor
ofWoodmere - they are hopefully hiring a guy for 1 5 hours per week. They couldn't find
anybody out there. Mayor said he wants to find out what they are doing. He would rather just
stick with Dave. Mayor said things just have to slow down here once winter comes. Porter said
it will, but questioned the long-term plan, Hocevar won't be here forever. Schloss asked the
Mayor if he talked to the County; Mayor replied he had. He said they went out there in
February. He said the guy asked them why they would want to give up control. Mayor said his
thought is to keep control of it. The Mayor said he spoke to Dan Spada who is the new Building
Inspector, he switched positions with Mike. Dan said the Village can either keep the
certification and the County take over the Building Department or the Village can give up the
certification and the County becomes the Village's certified Building Department. Mayor said
he doesn't know what that means. Mayor said he would go to the County Administrator who



would go to the County Commissioners and they would approve it - which is probably a one
paragraph letter. That is the whole process he was told over the phone.

Porter said if the Village could find a part-time Building Official who could take over for Dave
at some point that is probably what the Village is looking for long term. Hocevar is going to do
whatever he does, and he has been very good to the Village and he is staying now, but the
Village needs a long-term plan. Hocevar is not a long-term plan. Nothing against Hocevar, but
the Village has to be ready for someone to leave. The Village doesn't have a farm system in the
Building Department, the Village does in the Police Department. Mayor said long term wise, the
Northeast Ohio Mayors and City Managers are going to try to work with the State. They spoke
with the State in the springtime, but that is years away. He said Columbus is barely aware of the
shortage of Building Inspectors in the State so there is not going to be any legislative relief.
Porter said for Electrical Safety Inspector, if you hold a bachelor's degree in electrical
engineering, take the State test, you can become an ESI just like that without ever having
changed a lightbulb. Perhaps CT Consultants has someone that might be able to fill this'type of
role. These are all engineers, they are electrical people, mechanical, all of it. Schloss said GPD
does Building Official stuff.

Schloss said by the end of October the Village should decide. Schloss said the Village should
see what the traffic flow is like over the next couple weeks. Porter said the work slows closer to
winter, but then the contractors come in with their deposits for spring work in December and
January. Schloss said he was being the devil's advocate and said many people have asked him
why the Village has the Building Department, and most of them are builders and most of them
do work in Geauga County. They ask him why they have to come to SRV, they go to Chardon all
the time. Porter said if the Village goes to the County, no one will have an inspected roof, the
County doesn't do that. Porter said when he did his roof 5-6 years ago, the builder didn't pull a
permit, so his roof didn't get inspected. Nonetheless, if the Village goes with the County, there
will not be roof inspections. Long-term, maybe it isn't a problem, maybe it is. Mayor said he
has all the information of what the County does and doesn't do, along with the information on
what the Village does and doesn't do. He can print all that out and give it to Ferguson. It will
show the hours, money, people, permits, etc. Mayor said money can be a little distorted. If
Milko's house comes in, then it is another $5,000, the Village will have about $50,000 of income
this year, maybe a little more. Porter said Laura left in January. Schloss asked about the other
house going to be built on Bell Road. Mayor said he will contact Rob Meyer and let him know
the house meets the code. Mayor said he will give the Building Committee members the info he
gives to Meyers and Ferguson.

Mayor said he spoke to a resident about septic standards. The Mayor is going to tell him the
Village is going to check around with colleagues and find out what they are doing. Mayor thinks
he has a leg to stand on that these modem septic systems don't need to be cleaned every two
years, but how do you know. The manufacturer will probably say it doesn't. Mayor said as he
stated before, when you drive down Momingside or Green Valley, the back of Lake Louise, it
stinks. Porter said the Village has a standard that covers all the septic systems, the old and the
new. If the Village goes to three years, it will run into trouble with the old systems. Maybe not
the new ones, but the old ones will have issues. Mayor will tell Mulchahy the Village is still



gathering information. The Village could turn him into an asset. Porter said pumping the septic
is only a couple hundred dollars every two years.

Mayor said Kris did add up the meetings last year, there were a total of 22 meetings, 11 ABR, 4
ZBA and 7 Planning Commission. This year so far there have been 17 meetings, 6 ABR, 6 ZBA,
and 5 Planning Commission. The Mayor said now that the ZBA went to meeting the third
Wednesday of every month, they have had less meetings. Planning Commission had less
meetings this year so far and there is nothing out there he can see on the horizon.

Mayor informed the Committee that George Clemens is coming off the ZBA, so that will be
another opening. They had two females and a male, and a third female thinking about either
Planning Commission or ZBA. The Mayor told them all there are no meetings'this September,
but there may be meetings in October. The best bet is to do what he did with Bill Stone and
Heidi Baumgart; come to the ZBA meeting and see what it is about. In that case, the Mayor put
Stone on ZBA and he's happy. There will be another opening on ZBA and one of the four
candidates looked pretty good and would be perfect to go onto the ZBA. Then he will wait to
see if the other ones like it.

Schloss asked about the Architectural Board of Review (ABR). Mayor said he believes they are
all staggered. Mayor said the latest person to join was Ryan Parsons, he is a Bialosky. The
Mayor said he had to put a former member on the ABR for a one-time meeting so she could vote,
because he couldn't vote. The other members are Dennis Marino, who is a builder, and the other
one is Gary Neola, who is an architect. They get along and it is terrific to see them work. They
do get paid a nominal amount. Schloss asked if they are aware of the issue that is going to come
up with Bialosky and the home on Daisy Lane. The Mayor said they are very much aware.
They have had unpleasant conversations in the ABR meetings with the homeowner. Mayor said
it was his belief that Bialosky was all approved.

Schloss asked about Chuck at Femwood and Bell Road and wanted to know if anybody has
talked to him about the junk that he has back there again. The Mayor said he will. Schloss said
the neighbors have asked him to please talk to him. Porter inquired about the health of the
resident Schloss said he has seen him walking around, but he hasn't talked to him. The Mayor
said the last time he was there they tagged two of his trees. The one tree CEI came by and said
they would take it down; they still haven't. He took down the other one and has cleaned up the
front a little bit. Schloss said the front is fine, but there are all kinds of stuff in the back. The
Mayor said someone should buy him a fence. Schloss said he had a fence and the neighbors
said, "just put the fence up. " The last time Hocevar was there, he got the "signal" from the
neighbor. The Mayor said he is going to go to court on the 27th. He has never been through the
court process and he wants to see what it is like.

Mayor said he will have Nancy look into lighting and septic standards. Mayor said he assumed
things with Kris will pass at the Special Council meeting at 4:00 p.m., so he was going to call
and ask her if this is going to pass, could she come in tomorrow and work with Nancy.



Porter said if the Village is going to move on the Zoning Inspector part-timer, this should be
done sooner rather than later. The Mayor asked if they knew who the Zoning Inspector in
Newbury is now - the Mayor said it is Lorraine Sevich. Mayor said she was working the
Farmers' Market on Saturday. Mayor said to be a Zoning Inspector, you have to be breathing.
Porter said there are no requirements other than over the age of 18. Schloss said he would like to
push Nancy. Mayor asked what the committee members thoughts were on flexibility with Nancy
and her hours. Mayor said if he were Nancy, he would say, "Let me work 40 hours this week
and next week and then I would go down to 20. " He said the eagerness to get on top of it. Porter
said, "You can't do that. " The Mayor asked if she would have to be sent out the door on a
Wednesday if we had to. Porter said if she worked over 32 hours in a week, she would be
entitled to benefits and everything else. The Mayor said he would like to give her flexibility

At 9:27 a.m. Porter adjourned the meeting. All in favor.

Ray Schloss, Chairman

Prepared by Danielle Romanowski
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Building Committee Minutes 

1 July 2021 

Attending: 
 Mayor Bill Koons (WK)   Ruth Griswold (RG) 
 Dave Hocevar (DH)    Building Department (BD) 
 Gerald Canton (GC)    Building Committee (BC)  
 Chris Berger (CB)    Chief Rizzo (MR)     
  
 
Meeting called to order at 8:04AM by CB. The meeting was held in person. 
 
 

1. WK informed BC that sandwich board signs’ ordinance in the business district 
were going to be enforced starting in July. CB suggested mailing a notice to all 
businesses of our change in policy. WK thought an announcement in the 
newsletter was sufficient. WK was going to start by visiting the 5 or so 
businesses currently using sandwich boards and informing them of the 
ordinance. GC again noted that we should be consistent in our enforcement of 
the rules. MR raised the issue of paving signs – advertisements for paving 
companies placed at the site of completed paving/sealing jobs. We need to find 
out what the Ordinance calls for and start enforcing if non-compliant. Further 
discussion at the August meeting. 

2. GC raised the additional sign issue at the Gas Station. A discussion was held 
regarding the process of ABR, its approval, and the necessary follow-up to 
ensure that their approval is followed in the implementation stage. RG noted that 
she took the minutes for ABR and that she reported those to DH.  

3. MR asked to discuss zoning issue with non-operational vehicles parked in the 
front yards of several homes in the Village. MR, WK, and DH to meet with 
resident on Bell to discuss a solution to their parked vehicles the complies with 
the Ordinance.  

4. CB confirmed that a special meeting of Council will be held at 6pm on July 12th. 
One of the issues is fencing ordinances. Council had tabled the motion to amend 
the fencing ordinance and sent to PC for a recommendation. PC responded that 
split rail fences could be on the property line, but all other fences had a 3-foot 
setback requirement. The public hearing on July 12th will gain feedback from the 
community on the issue and BC will review in August to make a recommendation 
to Council at the August meeting. 

5. RG reported that she was ready to recommend to BC that we migrate to City 
Force software (the successor to our current, Franklin Software). RG to request a 
contract proposal from City Force for review at BC August Meeting. BC will then 
make a recommendation to Council at the August meeting. 

6. RG provided a flowchart of permitting processes with hand notes. GC and CB will 
work with Chagrin Falls schools to get help to format into an editable 
computerized form for further discussion. 

7. WK, DH, and RG noted that activity levels in both permits and zoning have 
almost doubled in the last two years. RG provided reports to BC. DH stated that 
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RG has been handling all the paperwork for permits, zoning, and the board work 
as well as cleaning up/out old paperwork and files. GC noted how “cleaned up” 
the offices look. RG said she had a lot more work to do. DH is limited by the 
terms of his contract time. CB said that perhaps, with the new software coming, 
and activity levels up, maybe, BC should consider asking for additional help in 
the BD.  DH said that he knew of a Russell resident that was currently working 
part-time for Streetsboro as the Zoning Inspector and could be available to work 
as an assistant zoning inspector in South Russell if we wanted.  CB asked how 
many hours and for how long? DH said 4 hours per week until November 1st and 
then we could re-evaluate need. BC to discuss further. 

8. CB raised the issue of renewing Inspection Solutions contract and asking for a 6-
month termination notice to protect the Village. DH said that he would work with 
the Village in any way he could.  CB said he thought the real issue was not 
termination time but what if DH became “unavailable.” What would the Village 
have to do to replace DH? BC does not have a solution at this time but will 
continue to discuss. 

 
 
CB moved to adjourn the meeting 9:26AM. GC concurred. 
 
Minutes approved by: ___________________________  
   Christopher J. Berger, Chair 
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Building Committee Minutes 

12 August 2021 

Attending: 
 Mayor Bill Koons (WK)   Ruth Griswold (RG) 
 Dave Hocevar (DH)    Building Department (BD) 
 Gerald Canton (GC)    Building Committee (BC)  
 Chris Berger (CB)    Chief Rizzo (MR)      
 
Meeting called to order at 8:04AM by CB. The meeting was held in person. 
 

1. WK and RG asked about the opportunity to “bank” hours for RG. CB and GC 
discussed the policy of overtime for the employee and that we did not want to 
have an issue with “banking” hours. RG was very aware that we have not 
authorized any overtime and wanted to keep to that policy.  RG was looking for 
some flexibility in responding to work needs. CB asked both RG and WK to 
review the need to bank hours for further discussion and if necessary, adjusting 
policies in discussion with the HR Committee. 

2. Fence Ordinance was again discussed. BC position is that if a distinction needs 
to be made for split rail fence with or without wire fencing attached, then BC 
would recommend NOT changing the existing ordinance – it would be too 
confusing. 

3. 18 Daisy Lane was discussed for the parking of commercial vehicles overnight. 
Draft ordinances were presented from other municipalities for discussion. DH 
informed BC that there is no existing ordinance covering this situation. 

4. RG advised that she is ready to proceed on the updated software with CityForce. 
CB asked to have a draft contract for the September meeting. A discussion was 
held with MR regarding technology issues for the new software. An upgrade to 
the Wi-Fi system was agreed upon and MR subsequently communicated that to 
Spectrum for implementation. It was agreed that an updated desktop was 
required and that the budget was already in place to do so. No other upgrades 
are required at this time. 

5. Continued discussion with RG regarding ARB submissions and re-submissions 
and the associated fees. GC asked for a recommendation to change the 
ordinance to compensate the ARB members fairly. RG to present in September. 

6. CB again raised the issue of renewing Inspection Solutions contract and asking 
for a 6-month termination notice to protect the Village. DH said that he would 
work with the Village in any way he could.  CB said he thought the real issue was 
not termination time but what if DH became “unavailable.” What would the Village 
have to do to replace DH? BC does not have a solution at this time but will 
continue to discuss. 

 
 
CB moved to adjourn the meeting 9:17AM. GC concurred. 
 
Minutes approved by: ___________________________  
   Christopher J. Berger, Chair 



1 
 

Building Committee Minutes 

2 September 2021 

Attending: 
 Mayor Bill Koons (WK)   Ruth Griswold (RG) 
 Dave Hocevar (DH)    Building Department (BD) 
 Gerald Canton (GC)    Building Committee (BC)  
 Chris Berger (CB)    Chief Rizzo (MR)      
 Tim Alder (TA) 
 
Meeting called to order at 8:04AM by CB. The meeting was held in person. 
 

1. WK asked about hiring a part-time zoning inspector for a 30 week period 
between March and October. Part-time would mean 4 hours per week. GC and 
CB agreed to present to Council for discussion.  WK, CB, and GC agreed that 
DH and RG were doing a good job but needed help – especially, during the 
Summer busy season. CB asked the Mayor what the salary range would be for 
the position.  WK thought that about $30/hr. would be reasonable. 

2. Fence Ordinance was again discussed. DH said that without further clarification 
regarding split rail fences, best to leave the ordinance as is and submit any 
requests for a variance to BZA. 

3. 18 Daisy Lane was again discussed for the parking of commercial vehicles 
overnight. BC agrees that the draft ordinance for Grove City (attached) would be 
sufficient. Additional discussion is required with the Solicitor regarding the GVW 
requirement. 

4. CityForce. Draft contract has been received and sent to the Solicitor for review. A 
“redline” copy has been returned for Committee review.  Pending approval, 
intend to present for Council approval at an October 2021 Council Meeting.  The 
Chief reported that the modem upgrade requested in August has been installed 
by Spectrum. A new HP desktop computer was installed on RG’ s desk and all 
local files have been transferred to the new equipment. RG says she is ready for 
CityForce when Council signs the agreement.  Chief says no additional hardware 
is required. 

5. Continued discussion with RG regarding ARB submissions and re-submissions 
and the associated fees. GC asked for a recommendation to change the 
ordinance to compensate the ARB members fairly. RG to present in October.  
There was consensus among the committee that we need to get moving on 
these ordinance changes. 

6. CB asked Tim Alder to be present at the meeting to discuss ditching/culvert pipe 
and the process for residents to make changes – specifically, replace the ditch 
with a culvert pipe and covered by dirt and grass. TA explained the existing 
process is for DH and TA to work together to review any applications received to 
either the Building or Service Department and make a recommendation to allow 
or not.  Safety is the primary decision point. CB asked if there was consistency in 
handling the requests. DH and TA concurred that less than 3 requests were 
made per year on average. CB asked what happened if a resident enacted the 
change without Village approval. TA said he was not aware of this happening but 
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that his staff “ride” the village weekly and would see and report such a change. 
CB asked TA about reporting this type of information through the new software. 
TA suggested a training session once the software is installed for TA to 
understand what is available. TA agreed that any good use of the software 
should be taken advantage of. 

7. RG raised the issue from a resident regarding restrictions against AirBNB or 
VRBO rental  issues within the Village. RG to call other municipalities for sample 
ordinances and report back. 

 
 
 
CB moved to adjourn the meeting 9:38AM. GC concurred. 
 
Minutes approved by: ___________________________  
   Christopher J. Berger, Chair 
 

EXAMPLES OF REGULATIONS OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES 

 

I. Grove City, Ohio 

 

351.17   PARKING OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS. 

(a)   No commercial tractor, truck, trailer or commercial automobile weighing more than 
8,000 pounds shall be parked, stored or allowed on any lot or parcel of land or on the street 
in any residential district. 

(b)   However, this section shall not apply to such vehicles used for conveying the 
necessary tools and materials to premises where labor using such tools and materials is to be 
performed during the actual time of parking of such vehicles, nor to the actual time during 
which such vehicles are being loaded or unloaded or used to deliver or hoist property or 
merchandise for completion of delivery as long as such activities referred to in this provision 
are conducted diligently and without unnecessary delay. 

(Ord. C41-82. Passed 6-21-82; Ord. C3-87. Passed 2-2-87.) 
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Building Committee Minutes 

7 October 2021 

Attending: 
 Mayor Bill Koons (WK)   Ruth Griswold (RG) 
 Dave Hocevar (DH)    Building Department (BD) 
 Gerald Canton (GC)    Building Committee (BC)  
 Chris Berger (CB)    Cindy Nairn (CN) 
 Mark Porter (MP) 
 
Meeting called to order at 8:03AM by CB. The meeting was held in person at Village 
Hall. 
 

1. WK invited the HR Committee to attend to discuss applicants for the Part-time 
Zoning Inspector. CN’s notes on the discussion are attached. WK suggested that 
the Street Department Commissioner be approached to apply for the position. 
Subsequent to this meeting, GC and CB met with the Street Commissioner and 
asked his interest in the position. A letter of interest has subsequently been 
received from Tim Alder. 
At the conclusion of this discussion, MP and CN left the meeting. 

2. WK again raised the issue of18 Daisy Lane and 1233 Bell Road as issues that 
require Zoning attention. WK , DH, and RG again discussed the need an 
ordinance addressing the parking of commercial vehicles overnight. BC agrees 
that the draft ordinance for Grove City (attached) would be sufficient. Additional 
discussion is required with the Solicitor regarding the GVW requirement. 

3. WK stated that all the temporary signs in the business district have now been 
removed. 

4. CityForce. Draft contract has been received from the Solicitor with suggested 
changes. CB to provide to Council on October 11th for their review.  

5. MC Art – DH and WK expressed further concern with the appearance of the 
property, addition of signs, etc. WK to speak with the owners. DH asked to have 
safety and traffic issues addressed. Concern for trucks backing out of the garage 
with cars parked/dropping off kids from Village property to MC Art. 

6. Continued discussion with RG regarding ARB submissions and re-submissions 
and the associated fees. GC asked for a recommendation to change the 
ordinance to compensate the ARB members fairly. RG to provide (received on 
October 8th).  There was consensus among the committee that we need to get 
moving on these ordinance changes. 

7. DH again raised the issue of Solar Panels. We need an Ordinance to address. 
8. RG raised the issue from a resident regarding restrictions against AirBNB or 

VRBO rental  issues within the Village. RG provided a sample Ordinance for BC 
to review and discuss in November. 

9. RG reported that the park rental concerns have not been and issue. 
10. WK reported receiving an inquiry as to the Ordinance in place regarding 

Marijuana based businesses. The Village has an Ordinance prohibiting such 
businesses. 
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11.  WK asked DH about Swimming Pools and if there had been further issues 
regarding fencing.  DH reported no further discussion. 

12. WK suggested a Special Building Meeting on October 25 at 6PM to address B&B 
issue. 

 
CB moved to adjourn the meeting 9:18AM. GC concurred. 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by: ___________________________  
   Christopher J. Berger, Chair 
 

 

 

Joint Human Resource and Building Committee Meeting 

October 7, 2021, 8:00 a.m. 

Members Present: Chairman Nairn, Porter, Chairman Berger, Canton, Mayor 

    

The meeting was called to order. 

Nairn reported that eight resumes for the part-time Zoning Inspector were reviewed/discussed.  The 
committees decided on a group of three from the submitted resumes.   Fiscal Officer will be setting up 
an interview schedule for the three candidates the week of Oct.11, 2021.  There was discussion of 
possibly the Street Commissioner being utilized as a future part-time Zoning Inspector.   
 
HR portion ended at 8:35 AM. 
 
 

_______________________________                            

Cindy Nairn, Chairwoman HR                                           

 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF ORDINANCES 

 

NONE 
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Building Committee Minutes 

25 October 2021 

Attending: 
 Mayor Bill Koons (WK)    
 Dave Hocevar (DH)    Building Department (BD) 
 Gerald Canton (GC)    Building Committee (BC)  
 Chris Berger (CB)    Greg Heilman 
  
 
Meeting called to order at 6:00PM by CB. The meeting was held in person at Village 
Hall. 
 

1. RG provided a list of changes to the fees and permits schedule for discussion. 
WK “walked” through 

Roof Deposit 
ARB resubmittal fee 
Handbook 
Commercial Vehicles 
Comparison of fee schedule compared to surrounding communities 

2. WK raised the discussion of applicants for the part-time zoning inspector. WK 
would like to have a recommendation from BC by the next meeting. 

3. WK again raised the issue of18 Daisy Lane and 1233 Bell Road. The Bell Road 
issue will go to a court hearing the first week in November.  A draft ordinance has 
been proposed for commercial vehicles parked overnight at residences. BC 
needs to make a recommendation to Council. WK still needs to address the 
Solicitor regarding the GVW requirement. 

4. WK questioned whether the monthly reports to Council from the BD had value. 
RG to streamline. 

5. CityForce. Contract to be approved at Council for moving forward. 
6. WK would like to see RG be able to bank hours to better manage work flow. BC 

to discuss further. 
7. Chickens – WK said some residents are raising chickens and the existing 

ordinance needs to be enforced. 
8. WK raised the issue of transitioning Council Members to new committees in 

2022. What can current BC do to assist in the process? 
 
CB moved to adjourn the meeting 7:10PM. GC concurred. 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by: ___________________________  
   Christopher J. Berger, Chair 
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EXAMPLES OF ORDINANCES 

 

NONE 
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Building Committee Minutes 

4 November 2021 

Attending: 
 Mayor Bill Koons (WK)    
       Building Department (BD) 
 Gerald Canton (GC)    Building Committee (BC)  
 Chris Berger (CB)     
  
 
Meeting called to order at 8:04AM by CB. The meeting was held in person at The 
Building Department. 
 

1. WK was providing coverage for RG who was off this day. WK took the 
opportunity to talk about cross-training. CB advised that the Finance Committee 
and HR had discussed a possible second administrative assistant on a part-time 
basis to address this and other issues. This is acceptable to the BC but training 
needs to start soon as the new software will come in January. 

2. WK said that the ARB resubmittal fee was discussed at ARB and that a 
recommendation to BC would be forthcoming. 

3. WK would like to appoint Tim Alder as the part-time zoning inspector and asked if 
the interviewing process needed to go forward? Issue to be raised with HR and 
Council? 

4. WK offered no new information regarding the issue of 18 Daisy Lane and 1233 
Bell Road.  

5. WK questioned whether the monthly reports to Council from the BD had value. 
RG to streamline. 

6. CityForce. CB reported that the contract was approved at Council. 
7. WK again said he would like to see RG be able to bank hours to better manage 

work flow. BC to discuss with HR. 
8. WK raised the issue of transitioning Council Members to new committees in 

2022. What can current BC do to assist in the process? WK thought that keeping 
one of the two current Council Members on the committee would help in 
continuity. CB and GC agreed. 

 
CB moved to adjourn the meeting 8:47AM. GC concurred. 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by: ___________________________  
   Christopher J. Berger, Chair 
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EXAMPLES OF ORDINANCES 

 

NONE 
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Building Committee Minutes 

2 December 2021 

Attending: 
 Mayor Bill Koons (WK)    
 Ruth Griswold (RG)    Building Department (BD) 
 Gerald Canton (GC)    Building Committee (BC)  
 Chris Berger (CB)     
  
 
Meeting called to order at 8:04AM by CB. The meeting was held in person at The 
Building Department. 
 

1. WK reported that 1233 Bell Rd situation was scheduled for another hearing on 
12/15/21 – parking in front of the house issue. 

2. RG reported that the new software installation was scheduled to be up and live 
by March 1st, 2022. RG needs to talk with Fiscal Officer and Finance Committee 
to arrange accepting credit cards. To be discussed at 1/10/22 Council Meeting. 

3. WK said that the ARB resubmittal fee was discussed at ARB. ARB was non-
committal. CB suggested that the ARB fee be upped to $150 and no additional 
resubmittal fees be added. RG thought the idea valuable and asked that it be 
presented to Council. WK to discuss with the Solicitor to implement 3/1/21. 

4. RG also suggest that the BZA process be converted to a flat fee of $300 with no 
refund. WK to discuss with the Solicitor. 

5. RG also suggested that the PC fee be converted to a flat fee of $250 with no 
refund. WK to discuss with the Solicitor. 

6. WK would like to appoint Tim Alder as the part-time zoning inspector. Tim has 
expressed reluctance to take the additional responsibility. GC suggested that we 
try on an interim basis. WK to talk with Tim and see if we can go forward on a 
trial basis. 

7. WK again raised the issue of transitioning Council Members to new committees 
in 2022. What can current BC do to assist in the process? WK thought that 
keeping one of the two current Council Members on the committee would help in 
continuity. CB and GC agreed. 

8. Schedule the next meeting for January 6, 2022 at 8:00AM. 
 
CB moved to adjourn the meeting 8:46AM. GC concurred. 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by: ___________________________  
   Christopher J. Berger, Chair 
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EXAMPLES OF ORDINANCES 

 

NONE 
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